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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Transrail Lighting Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Transrail
Lighting Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Material Accounting
Policy Information and other explanatory information in which are incorporated the
financials for the year ended on that date audited by branch auditors of the Company’s
branches located at Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Benin, Bhutan, Cameroon, Eswatini,
Gambia, Ghana, Italy, Jordon, Kenya, Mali, Mozambique, Nicaragua, Niger, Philippines,
Suriname, Tanzania, Thailand, Togo and Uganda (hereinafter referred to as “the
Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit (including other

comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
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audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises the information included in the Board’s report but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Independent Auditors’ Report
thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the Other

Information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance or conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility
is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the
Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements,
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including. the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
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accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial

Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

1. We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 22 Branches
included in the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company whose financial
statements / financial information reflect total assets as at March 31, 2024 of Rs.
725.59 crores, total revenues of Rs. 387.06 crores and net cash flows of Rs. (3.19)
crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the Standalone Financial
Statements. The Financial Statements / Financial Information of these branches
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respect of these branches and our report in terms of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of

the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid branches is based solely on the reports
of such branch auditors.

2. Allthe above stated branches are located outside India, the audited financials stated
above have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing
standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of such branches located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting
principles generally accepted in India so as to make these financial statements fit for
consolidation. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the
Company’s management. Our audit report in so far as it relates to the balances and
affairs of such branches located outside India is based on the reports of other

auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the
Company and audited by us.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect of these matters with respect

to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the attached Annexure “A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except
for the matter stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below relating to reporting under
rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014, as amended. We
have also received financial statements and returns adequate for the purposes
of our audit from the Branches of the Company not visited by us as detailed in

g AR our paragraph on Other Matters.
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c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

d.  Inouropinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
April 1, 2024 to April 3, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

i With reference to maintenance of accounts and other matter therewith,
reference is invited to paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section
143(3)(b) and para 2(i)(vi) below relating to reporting under rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule 2014, as amended.

g.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act.

i With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its

financial position in its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 47
to the Standalone Financial Statements,

The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses if any, on long
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term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There are no amounts that are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

a. The management has represented that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief other than as disclosed in Note 9 (d) of the
Standalone Financial Statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person or entities, including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with
the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been received by the company from any
person or entities including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

c. Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year until
the date of this report, hence compliance with provisions of section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required.

vi. Based on our examination of the feature of audit trail in the accounting
software which included test checks, except for instances mentioned
(/;m below, the company has used accounting software for maintaining its

books of account, which have feature for recording audit trail (edit log)
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facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software.

a. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled
at the application layer of the accounting software at some of the
Company’s branches which are not material.

b. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled

at the database level to log any direct data changes for the accounting
software used by the Company.

Further, where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled for the
respective software, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

As per the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 on the preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention, the same is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024,

For Nayan Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.107023W

}:‘ﬂ""’r p
K. N. Padmanabhan
Partner

M. No. 036410

Mumbai, Dated: May 24, 2024
UDIN: 2102 6ULO R 1K C JEW §899




ANNEXURE A

(Referred to in_paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Transrail Lighting Limited of
even date)

(i) a. (A) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full

particulars including quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant
and Equipment.

(B) The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

b. Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. We are informed by the management that all the title deeds of immovable
properties are in custody of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited. We have
therefore not verified the physical documents of immovable property and
relied on the management representation and confirmation of the IDBI
trustee, (other than the properties where the company is the lessee, and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in
the Standalone Financial Statements and based on such confirmation we
confirm that the same are held in the name of the Company.

d. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Hence clause 3(i)(d)

of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the
Company.

e. On the basis of information and explanation given, no proceedings have
been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

(i)  (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals during the year. On the basis of examination of
records, we are of the opinion that the coverage and procedure of such
verification is appropriate and that no discrepancies of 10% or more in the
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aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such verification.

The discrepancy noted have been properly dealt with in the books of
account of the Company.

(b) In our opinion and on the basis of examination of books and records
and on the basis of information and explanation given to us the Company
has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks or financial institutions are largely in agreement
with the books of account of the Company, except as detailed in Note No.
25 (v) to the notes to accounts.

(i)  (a) In our opinion and on the basis of examination of books and records
and on the basis of information and explanation given to us the Company
has made investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships.
The Company has also provided guarantee or security or granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,

firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties details of which
are given hereunder:

Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances

(Rsin Cr) | innature of
loans

Aggregate

amount granted

/provided during 47.20

the year

- Subsidiaries -

- Joint Ventures -

- Associates 47.00
- Others 0.20
Balance

outstanding as at
balance  sheet
date in respect of

such cases
- Subsidiaries 24,13
- Joint Ventures 1.82

- Associates 79.00
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Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances
(Rsin Cr) | in nature of
loans
- Others 0.13

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the
investrents made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and
guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that in
respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments or receipts are regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that no
amount is overdue for more than ninety days.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that no
loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during
the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle
the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties except as

hereunder:

Narne of the party | Aggregate amount of Percentage of the

over dues of existing aggregate to the total
loans renewed or loans or advances in the
extended or settled nature of loans granted
by fresh loans during the year
(Rs. in Cr)

Transrail 3.83 3.12%

International FZE

Burberry Infra 12.50 12.11%

Private Limited
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the
company has not granted any loans or advances during the year in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

(iv)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect of loans given, investment made,
guarantees and security.

(v)  The Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts that
are deemed to be deposits pursuant to sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder. As informed to us, there is no order that has been passed by
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank
of India or any Court or any other tribunal in respect of the said sections.

(vi)  As informed to us, the maintenance of the cost records under the sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been prescribed
and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, carried
out a detailed examination of the records to ascertain whether they are
accurate or complete.

(vi)  (a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Act, Provident fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues
to the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable
in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2024 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except as given in the attached
Statement 1.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best
3 P> of our knowledge and belief there are no transactions that were not
Ly S y 4 - .
f/;:'f_,.... p&\lf recorded in the books of account, and which has been surrendered or
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disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, we report that the company has not been
declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans
during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
audit procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report
that the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on

account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit
procedures performed by us, we report that the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

(x)  (a)The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the audit procedures performed we report that the Company has made
preferential allotment of shares during the year under review.

(xi)  (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.
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(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government

and hence clause 3(xi)(b) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020
is not applicable to the company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the company
has not received any whistle blower complaint during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii) (b)
and 3(xii)(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our examination of
the proceedings of the meetings of the Audit Committee and Board of
Directors are concerned. The details of related party transactions have

been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable
Accounting Standards.

(xiv)  (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of it business

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year issued by

the in house internal audit department to the company issued till date, for
the period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion
during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors.

(xvi)  (a) The nature of business and the activities of the Company are such that
the Company is not required to obtain registration under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and hence sub-clause 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b)
and 3(xvi)(c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable to the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our

opinion during the year, the Group does not have any CICs as part of the
Group.

(xvii)  On an examination of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, we are of

AR the opinion that the Company has not incurred cash losses during the

QAR N he opinion that the Company h t i d cash | during th
/C { [/r,.\ financial year and the immediate previous financial year.
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(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year

and accordingly clause (3)(xviii) Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020
is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of audit procedures performed by us, in our opinion in respect of
other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amount required to be
transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 2013
within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in

compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
said Act.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of audit procedures performed by us, in our opinion in respect of
ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount to a
special account, within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial
year in compliance with section 135(6) of the said Act.
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Financial Amount unspent Amount Amount
Year on Corporate Transferred to Transferred
Social Special Account after the due
Responsibility within 30 days date (specify
Activities for from the end of the date of
“Ongoirg the Financial Year deposit)
Projects” (Rsin Cr.)
A B C D
2023-24 1.54 1.54 -

For Nayan Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No- 107023W

K. N. Padmanabhan
Partner
M. No. 036410

Mumbai, Dated: May 24, 2024
UDIN: 2.4 06110 B IRW €999
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Transrail Lighting Limited of
even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements of Transrail Lighting Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in

conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
~ assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Rl SFinancial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
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effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of Financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to
/T—F,Tﬂ Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial

17 “eontrol with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of

“ O
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changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to standalone Financial Statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Nayan Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107023W

K. N. Padmanabhan
Partner

M. No. 036410
Mumbai, Dated: May 24, 2024

UDIN: 22406364 )0 BreaRwW §899
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Statement 1

Statement of Statutory Dues outstanding on account of disputes, as on 31st March,2024,
referred to in Para (vii) (b) of Annexure A to Auditor’s Report

Name of Nature of Amount | Pre- Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In Deposit | which it dispute is
Cr) Amount | relates pending
(Rs. In
Cr)
Service Tax | Tax 595 - | Apr 2008 to | Hon. Supreme
Jan 2008 Court
Service Tax | Tax 4.77 - | Feb 2009 to | Hon. Supreme
Sep 2009 Court
Service Tax | Tax 6.53 - | Oct 2009 to | Hon. Supreme
Mar 2010 Court
Service Tax | Tax 7.18 - | Apr 2010 to | Hon. Supreme
Mar 2011 Court
Service Tax | Tax 4,23 - | Apr 2011 to | Hon. Supreme
Mar 2012 Court
Service Tax | Tax 2.00 0.15 | 2012-13 to CESTAT Mumbai
2013-14
Service Tax | Penalty 2.00 - | 2012-13to | CESTAT Mumbai
2013-14
Service Tax | Tax 0.06 0.01 | 2006-07 CESTAT, Western
Region,
Ahmedabad
Service Tax | Tax 7.25 0.54 | Oct 2014 to | CESTAT- Mumbai
June 2017
Service Tax | Penalty 7.25 Oct 2014 to | CESTAT- Mumbai
June 2017
Excise Tax 1.63 0.47 | Dec 2012 to | CESTAT Mumbai
Jan 2013
Excise Penalty 1.63 - | Dec2012to | CESTAT Mumbai
Jan 2013
Excise Tax 0.47 0.05 | Sep-14 CESTAT-
Ahmedabad
Excise Penalty 0.05 - | Sep-14 CESTAT-
Ahmedabad
Excise Tax 0.65 0.06 | Aug 2015 to | CESTAT-
e Sep 2015 Ahmedabad
s~ 7 PNExcise Penalty 0.06 - | Aug 2015 to | CESTAT-
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Wame of Nature of Amount | Pre- Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In Deposit | whichit dispute is
Cr) Amount | relates pending
(Rs. In
cr)
Service Tax | Tax 5.95 - | Apr2008 to | Hon. Supreme
Jan 2009 Court
Sep 2015 Ahmedabad
Excise Tax 0.35 0.03 | Jun-13 CESTAT-
Ahmedabad
Excise Tax 0.10 0.01 | April 2011 CESTAT-
to Dec 2011 | Ahmedabad
VAT Tax & 0.11 0.11 | 2007-08 Gujarat Value
Penalty Added Tax
Tribunal
VAT Tax 0.51 0.51 | 2008-09 Gujarat Value
Added Tax
Tribunal
VAT Tax & 0.10 0.10 | Apr 2009 to | Gujarat Value
Penalty Jun 2009 Added Tax
Tribunal
VAT Tax & 0.20 0.20 | Jul 2009 to | Gujarat Value
Penalty Mar 2010 Added Tax
Tribunal
VAT & CST | Tax 0.37 0.01 | 2007-08 Gujarat Value
Added Tax
tribunal
VAT/CST Tax, Interest 117 0.14 | 2016-17 Deputy
and Penalty Commissioner
VAT Tax 2.40 2012-13 Mumbai Value
Added Tax Jt.
Commissioner
Appeal
VAT/CST Tax, Interest 3.47 0.18 | 2016-17 Jt.
and Penalty Commissioner,
Appeals
VAT/CST Tax, Interest 0.21 0.01 | April 2017 Jt. Commissioner
and Penalty to June 2017
VAT Tax, Interest 1.48 - | 2009-10 Commissioner,
and Penalty i Ranchi
CST Tax, Interest 0.77 - | 2009-10 Commissioner,
ASARIAES - and Penalty Ranchi
LZ*L MUMBALI ]‘ﬁ
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Name of Nature of Amount | Pre- Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In Deposit | which it dispute is
Cr) Amount | relates pending
(Rs. In
Cr)
Service Tax | Tax 5.95 - | Apr 2008 to | Hon. Supreme
Jan 2009 Court
VAT Tax, Interest 1.03 - | 2010-11 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
CST Tax, Interest 0.31 - | 2010-11 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
VAT Tax, Interest 0.78 - | 2011-12 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
CST Tax, Interest 0.32 - | 2011-12 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
VAT Tax, Interest 1.15 2012-13 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi ‘
CST Tax, Interest 0.50 2012-13 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
VAT Tax, Interest 1.08 2013-14 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
CST Tax, Interest 0.50 2013-14 Commissioner,
and Penalty Ranchi
VAT Tax, Interest 0.01 -1 2017-18 Jt. Commissioner
and Penalty
VAT Tax, Interest 1.73 0.09 | 2017-18 Commissioner,
and Penalty Satna
ET Tax, Interest 0.02 -1 2017-18 Commissioner,
and Penalty Satna
VAT Tax, Interest 0.78 0.08 | 2017-18 Commissioner,
and Penalty Indore
ET Tax, Interest 0.02 -12017-18 Commissioner,
and Penalty Indore
ST Tax 1.90 2012-13 Mumbai Value
Added Tax Jt.
Commissioner
Appeal
Commercial | Tax and 0.36 - | 2008-09 Add.
Tax Interest Commissioner,
Appeals,

Lucknow
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Name of Nature of Amount | Pre- Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In Deposit | which it dispute is
Cr) Amount | relates pending
(Rs. In
Cr)
Service Tax | Tax 5.95 - | Apr 2008 to | Hon. Supreme
Jan 2009 Court
Income Tax | Tax 0.18 - | Asst. Year Commissioner of
2016-17 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Tax 0.36 Asst. Year Commissioner of
2017-18 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Tax 16.32 - | Asst. Year Commissioner of
2018-19 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Tax 9.26 - | Asst. Year Commissioner of
2019-20 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Tax 3.76 0.76 | Asst. Year Commissioner of
2020-21 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Tax 9.13 0.75 | Asst. Year Commissioner of
2021-22 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Tax 26.19 - | Asst. Year Commissioner of
2022-23 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Goods and | Tax 1.60 0.16 | April 2019 Deputy
Services Mar 2020 Commissioner,
Tax Indore
Goods and | Interest and 0.84 - | April 2019 Deputy
Services Penalty Mar 2020 Commissioner,
Tax Indore
Goods and | Tax 0.20 0.02 | April 2020 Deputy
Services Mar 2021 Commissioner,
Tax Indore
Goods and | Interest and 0.12 - | April 2020 Deputy
Services Penalty Mar 2021 Commissioner,
Tax Indore
Goods and | Tax 0.69 0.07 | 2018-19 Jt.
Services T , Commissioner,
Tax é%\ Appeals, Indore
i N U%JB% 1)
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Name of Nature of Amount | Pre- Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In Deposit | which it dispute is
Cr) Amount | relates pending
(Rs. In
Cr)
Service Tax | Tax 5.95 - | Apr 2008 to | Hon. Supreme
Jan 2009 Court
Goods and | Interest and 0.40 - | 2018-19 Jt.
Services Penalty Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Indore
Goods and | Tax 0.13 0.01 | July 2017- Deputy
Services Mar 2018 Commissioner,
Tax Indore
Goods and | Interest and 0.13 - | July 2017- Deputy
Services Penalty Mar 2018 Commissioner,
Tax - Indore
Goods and | Tax 0.37 0.04 | 2018-19 Jt.
Services Commissioner,
Tax Appeais, Durg
Goods and | Interest and 0.21 -1 2018-19 Jt.
Services Penalty Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Durg
Goods and | Tax 0.13 0.01 | Apr 2021 - | Jt.
Services Sep 2021 Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Indore
Goods and | Interest and 0.02 - | Apr2021- | Jt.
Services Penalty Sep 2021 Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Indore
Goods and | Tax 2.84 0.28 | 2019-20 Jt.
Services Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Tirupati
Goods and | Tax 0.37 0.04 | Jul 2017 - Jt.
Services Dec 2019 Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Tirupati
Goods and | Interest and 0.35 - 1 2019-20 Jt.
Services Penalty Commissioner,
Tax Appeals, Tirupati
Goods and | Tax 0.12 0.01 | Jul 2017 - Commissioner,
Services Mar 2021 Surat
Tax
Goods and | Interest and 0.12 - | Jul 2017 - Commissioner,
Services Penalty Mar 2021 Surat
Tax SRR
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Name of Nature of Amount | Pre- Period to Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In Deposit | which it dispute is

Cr) Amount | relates pending

(Rs. In
Cr)
Service Tax | Tax 5.95 - | Apr 2008 to | Hon. Supreme
Jan 2009 Court
Goods and | Tax 0.81 0.08 | 2017-2018 Commissioner,
Services Surat
Tax
Goods and | Interest and 0.92 -1 2017-2018 Commissioner,
Services Penalty Surat
Tax
Goods and | Tax 0.23 0.02 | 2017-2018 Commissioner,
Services Haryana
Tax
Goods and | Interest and 0.24 - | 2017-2018 Cemmissioner,
Services Penalty Haryana
Tax
Total 149.48 5.00




Transrail Lighting Limited
C!N:USlSOEMHIUL‘IBPLCl?BMZ
standalone Statement of Assets and Liabilitles
(Al figures are Rupees in Crares unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note Asat As at
Ref 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and Equipment 3 347.04 350.63
(b) Right-of-use Asset 4 26.38 18.30
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress 5 5.78 412
(d) Other Intangible Assets 6 0.09 0.19
{e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 0.65 0.66
(it} Trade Receivables 2 =
{iii) Loans 9 25.94 51.10
(iv) Others 10 58.88 60.93
{f) Other Nor-current Assets 14 53.50 32.04
{g) Deferred Tax Assets {Met) 23 -
518.26 526.97
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 11 37779 311.00
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investmerits 7 4,50 3.23
(i) Trade Receivables 8 1,026.14 644.90
{ifi) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 (a) 109.36 119.87
(iv) Bank Balances other than (i) above 12 {b) 114.05 73.41
(v) Loans 9 79.12 12.78
(i} Others 10 37.55 24.83
(¢} Contract Assets 13 1,951.08 1,466.90
{d) Other Current Assets 14 429,25 270.67
4,129.23 2,927.59
Assets Held for Sale 15 0.24 0.24
Total Assets 4,647.74 3,454.80
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 16 24.79 22.80
(b) Other Equity 17 1,139.06 758.01
1,163.35 780.81
Liabilities
(1) Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 80.67 120.34
(il) Lease Liabilities 20 14.41 832
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 60.06 56.67
(b) Provisions 2 511 4.31
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
{d) Other Non-current Liabilities - =
160.25 189.64
(2) Current liablities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 25 562.52 484,58
(i) Lease Liabilities 20 975 £.03
(iii) Trade Payables 26
Outstanding Dues of Micro & small Enterprises 32.23 28.62
Outstanding Dues other than Micro & Small Enterprises 1,639.90 1,280.41
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 19 46.22 46.29
(b) Contract Liabilities 1 929,90 540.95
{¢] Other Current Liabilities 24 33.58 2232
(d) Provisions 22 41.93 51.47
(e) Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 27 21.61 21.68
3,323.64 2,484.35
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,647.74

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statermnents.

As per our report of even date attached. /

f ! \ -
For Nayan Parikh & Co. Eor and on behalf of Board of Directors ( ok { MUMBAI ® |
Chartered Accountants I l'\‘;_}t - ol r: |
FRN. 107023W f(u /)
b L) NS

S PP M-"" L——J
K N Padmanabhan D C Bagde Rantleep Nafdng
Partner Executive Chairman Managing Difgctor &
CED

M.No. 036410 DIN - 072658

DIN - 0;’2 564

Ajit Pratap Singh
Chief Financial Officer

(Goupaciye
Gandhali Upadhye

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Mumbai, May 24, 2024



Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN:U31506MH2008PLC179012
Statement of Staridalone Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All fiqures are Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note 2023-24 2022-23
Ref
| Revenue from Operations 28 4,009.23 3,086.14
Il Other Operating Revenue 29 67.29 65.51
Il Other Income 30 53.97 22.22
Total Income 4,130.49 3,173.87
IV Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed Eh ] 2,245.39 1,821.41
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 32 (37.08) (8.21)
and Stock-in-Trade
Sub-contracting Expenses 33 498.73 348.79
Employee Benefits Expense 34 197.78 178.83
Finance Costs 35 162.59 119.69
Depreciation & Amortisation 36 50.14 45.78
Other Expenses 37 693.41 517.46
Total Expenses 3,810.96 3,023.74
V'  Profit Before Tax 319.53 150.13
VI Tax Expense 38 84.87 40.73
1. Current Tax 84.87 39.00
2. Deferred Tax Liaoility / (Asset) - -
3. (Excess) / Short Provision of Tax - 1.73
VIl Profit for the period 234.66 109.40
VIl Other Comprehensive Income
A Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods
Exchange differences on translation of the Financial 8.11 0.61
Statements of Foreign Operations
8.11 0.61
B Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.73) 0.21
(net of tax)
Tax thereon (0.05)
(0.73) 0.16
Total Other Comprehensive Income 7.38 0.77
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period 242.04 110.17
X Earning Per Equity Share
(i) Par Value (Rs.) 39 2.00 2.00
(ii) Basic (Rs.) 19.71 9.57
(iii) Diluted (Rs.) 19.71 9.57

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Nayan Parikh & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 107023W

i '*‘-_“-'g\\_

Qden. &
cd NG\ D C Bagde
Partner /; / e Executive Chairman
t.—;"i MUMBAI |~
M.No. 036410 o, ' DIN - 07269818

o\ < DIN - 00122564

Gandhali Upadhye
Company Secretary
& Compliance Officer

Ajit Pratap Singh

Mumbai, May 24, 2024 Chief Financial Officer
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Transrall Lighting Limited
CIN: U31506MH2008PLC175012
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow
(Al figures ore Rupees in Crores unless otherwise state d)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 319.53 150.13
Adjustments for :
Depreciation 50.14 45.78
Interest Income (21.05) (10,50
Interest Expenses 140,85 104.23
Interest on Lease Liabilities 283 157
Allowance for Expected and Lifetime Credit Loss 0.70 422
Provision for Doubtful Debts 337 5.20
Fair Value of Investment [0.48) {0.08)
Profit on sale of Investment (3.78)
Assets discarded - -
(Prafit) / loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipments (0.57) 202
Expenses on Employees stock option Scheme 101 -
Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss 3.37 {17.12)
Provision for Expectad Contractual Obligation {17.20) (3.35)
(Revearsall/Provision for Short Supply B.24 4.63
Sundry Credit Balances Written Back {2.04) (8.21)
Bad Debts Written Off B.51 425
16590} 13244
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes a4g9.43 282.57
Trade Receivables (388.50) [13.02)
Cantract Assets (483.73) (373.10)
Inventaries (66.80) (32.51)
Other Financial assets (4.14) 15.25
Dther assets {156.57) {56.32)
Trade payables 365.15 246.67
Centract Liability 388.95 20,73
Other Financial liability 1074 745
Other Liability and Provisions 13.70 {1.40)
{321.60) 1126.2#!
CASH GENERATED FROM THE OPERATIONS 167.84 156.33
Direct Taxes Paid (110.12) (13.76]
Net Cosh generated from Operating Activities 57.71 142.57
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment far Property, Plant & Equipments (29.24) {53.16)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 1.71 213
Movement in other Bank Balances {36.75) (48.66)
Loans and advances given to Related parties (47.00) {15.48)
Loan and advances repaid by Related parties 230 .00
Purchase of other Investment {4.49) -
Sale of Other Investment 3.30 =
Sale of Investernent of Associates 378 -
Interest Received 5.22 ] 6.59
Net Cosh {used in) Investing Activities (96.16) (1086.59)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
interest Paid {139.85) (99.83)
Proceeds from issue of Employee Stock Option - 0.87
Proceeds fram Preferential issue of Equity Shares 140.00 -
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 549 100.45
Repayment of Lang Term Borrowings (60.20) {118.12)
Proceeds from [ (Repayment of) Short Term Borrowings B89.98 154.47
Interest on Lease Liabilities (2.83) (157)
Principal Repaymaent of Lease Liabilities {7.55) (6.20)
Net Cosh generated {Used in] fram Financing Activities 27.93 23.07
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10.51 65.05
Balance as at Beginning 119.87 54,82
Balance as at Closing 109.36 119.87
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (10.57) 65.05
Compaonents of Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i} Balances with banks 50.54 B6.06
{il) Balance with Bank -Fereign Branches 26.89 27.15
(iii} Fixed Deposits with Banks 30.85 3.82
(iv) Cash on hand 0.99 0.67
{v) Cheques on Hand - 2.17
103.36 119.87
Note: Figure in brackets denote outflows
As per our report of even date attached.
For Nayan Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of
Chartered Accauntants == 1
FRN. 107023W )
K %) U"“’ty D CHapde
KN Pad bl Executive Chairman B CEO
Partner DIN - 00 DIN - 07269818
M.Ne. 036410
Goupsdys
Mumbai, May 24, 2024 Ajit Pratap Singh Gandhali Upadhye
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer
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Transrail Lighting Limited

CIN: U31506MH2008PLC179012

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Company Overview and Material Accounting Policy information

A. Company Overview

Transrail Lighting Limited ("the Company" and "Transrail") is a public company domiciled in India and is

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company
is located at Mumbai, India.

The Company, incorporated in 2008, has been an integrated pole manufacturing company with state of art
manufacturing capabilities, vast experience and a rich pedigree. Consequent upon the transfer of Transmission
and Distribution (T&D) business of M/s Gammon India Limited ("GIL") to the Company, effective January 1, 2016,
the Company is now an integrated transmission and distribution company.

The said T&D undertaking has close to 39 years of experience of executing extra high voltage Transmission and
Distribution lines / rural electrification projects on turnkey basis. The company's scope of work includes design,
testing, manufacturing and supply of galvanized towers, conductors, and allied construction activities. The
Company has built in house capabilities in designing and testing of towers, with a tower manufacturing capacity
of 110,000 TPA and a state-of-the-art tower testing facility at Deoli, Wardha District, which can test towers up to
1200 kV. Over the years the company has executed marquee turnkey projects and cemented its position as a
renowned T&D player in India. The company is the only player in India having manufacturing capabilities of towers,
a Conductor Manufacturing Plant and a Mono Poles Manufacturing plant and an ultra-modern Tower Testing

Station. In recent years the company has also embarked into the projects of rural electrification, railway
electrification, erection of Sub-Stations and civil construction.

The Financial Statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors in the meeting held on May
24,2024,

Recent Pronouncements

There have been no recent accounting pronouncements made by Ministry of Corporate Affairs relating to the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Basis of Preparation

These Financial Statements are Standalone Financial Statements and have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") under the historical cost convention except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (to the extent notified), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule lil).

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Therefore, the Financial Statements have been presented

in INR ("Rs.") and all amounts have been rounded off to the nearest Crore (One crore equals ten million), except
where otherwise stated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in

se.




D.

F.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS required the management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period and the actual results could differ from these
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of the changes in the
circumstances surrounding the estimates and assumptions. The changes in estimates are reflected in the financial

statements in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the
operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule Il to the Act. Operating cycle for the
business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project / contract / service including the defect
liability period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realization of receivables (including retention monies)

within the credit period normally applicable to the respective project. Operating cycle for pure supply contracts
and other businesses are considered as twelve months.

Critical accounting policies and estimates

The financial statements require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosures of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could results in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The
application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed here under.

L Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial
statements.

ii. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unabsorbed tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be set-off. Significant management judgement is

required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits.

iii. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term

nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

iv. Non-current asset held for sale

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The
determination of fair value less costs to sell includes use of management estimates and assumptions. The
fair value of the asset held for sale has been estimated using valuation techniques (mainly income and
market approach), which include unobservable inputs. A



A.

V. Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage of completion method in accounting for its construction contracts. The
use of the percentage of completion method requires the Company to estimate the expenditure to be
incurred on the project till the completion of the project. The percentage of work completed is

determined in the proportion of the expenditure incurred on the project till each reporting date to total
expected expenditure on the project. Provision for estimated foreseeable losses, if any, on uncompleted

contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected
contract estimates at the reporting date.

Material Accounting Policy Information

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from Engineering, Procurement and Construction business.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from Operations, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-
completion method. The Company determines the percentage-of-completion on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods or services

promised under the contract. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue
recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue from the sale of distinct manufactured / traded material is recognised upfront at the point in time when
the control over the material is transferred to the customer.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized in the accounting period when the service is rendered and the
right to receive the revenue is established.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as Contract assets while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified
as contract liabilities (which can be referred as Advances from Customers).

Advance payments received from customers for which no services are rendered are also presented under 'Advance
from Customers'.

In arrangements for supply and erection contracts performed over a period of time, the Company has applied the
guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for
each distinct performance obligation. Although there may be separate contracts with customers for supply of parts
and erection of towers, it is accounted for as a single contract as they are bid and negotiated as a package with a
single commercial objective and the consideration for one contract depends on the price and performance of the
other contract. The goods and services promised are a single performance obligation.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and

\ similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss.



Export Benefits

Duty Drawback claims are recognized based on the entitlement under relevant scheme / laws.

Other Revenues
All other revenues are recognized on accrual basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
The Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

The Company depreciates the assets in accordance with the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act except
for i) Second hand plant & machineries are depreciated over the period of 5 to 10 years based on technical
evaluation of the same & ii) erection tools and tackles which are depreciated over the period of 2 and 5 years
based on the technical evaluation of the same. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Non-current Assets held for sale

A Non-Current Asset is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale
rather than through its continuing use, is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms

that are usual and customary for sale, it is highly probable that sale will take place within next 1 year and sale will
not be abandoned.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets consist of rights and licenses which are mortised over the useful life on a straight line basis.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset
and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.
The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the

shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid atythe =,

"\._\H_ 1

commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in h’e\Kase,




if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition,
except for trade receivables which are recorded at transaction price. Fair value is the price that would be received

to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) financial instruments at mortised cost

b) financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

¢) financial instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets at amortized cost
A Financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Assets at FVTOCI
A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the Company

recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
profit & loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified

from the equity to statement of profit & loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported
as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial Asset at FVTPL
Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is

classified as at FVTPL.

De-recognition

., ~Afinancial asset is derecognized when:

' B Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or



F.

B The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes

derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit & loss. Financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently
transferred to the statement of profit & loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through the statement of profit & loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, commodity price risk as cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign
exchange risk and commodity price risk for highly probable forecast transactions are accounted for as cash flow

hedges. Hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or a firm commitment are accounted for as fair
value hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents
whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged

item attributable to the hedged risk. Note 42 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used
for hedging purposes.
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Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit

or loss, together with any changes in fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged
risk. The gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. '

Where the hedged item subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset, both the deferred hedging
gains and losses and the deferred time value of the option contracts, if any, are included within the initial cost of

the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss
through cost of material consumed.

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to (effective
portion as described above) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast
transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are
transferred from equity (but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the
cost of the non-financial asset or nonfinancial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another liability from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characterist_jcs_--and-r]sks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained

! .
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impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognizes the loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for financial assets which
are not valued through the statement of profit and loss account.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or
contract revenue receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk
exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the

statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of
profit and loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are not amortized / depreciated and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets subject to amortization / depreciation are tested for impairment provided that an event or
change in circumstances indicates that their carrying amount might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized in the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the difference between asset’s fair value less sale costs and value in use. For the purposes of assessing

impairment, assets are aggregated at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).

Non-financial assets other than Goodwill for which impairment losses have been recognized are tested at each
balance sheet date in the event that the loss has reversed.

The Company, on an annual basis, tests Goodwill for impairment, and if any impairment indicators are identified
tests other non-financial assets, in accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and sensitivity analysis is performed on the most relevant variables included in the estimates, paying
particular attention to situations in which potential impairment indicators may be identified.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets

General

The company recognizes a provision when it has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events; it is likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required to settle the
obligation is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are carried at the present value of forecast payments that are expected to be required to settle the
obligation, using a rate before taxes that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and

the specific risks of the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

Provision for Contractual Obligation



The company is exposed to shortages in the supply and rectification of erection services of the materials which
generally are identified during the course of the execution of the project. These shortages are due to various

aspects like theft, pilferage and other losses. The company therefore records the costs, net of any claims, at the
time related revenues are recorded in the statement of profit & loss.

The company estimates such costs based on historical experience and estimates are reviewed on an annual basis
for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but

discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Foreign Currencies

Transactions and Balances

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with

the exception of the following:

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity's net investment in a
foreign operation are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) in the standalone financial statements
of the reporting entity. The foreign operations are accounted in the standalone financial statements as a non-
integral operation.

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Company's net
investment of a foreign operation are recognized in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time,
the cumulative amount is reclassified to statement of profit & loss.

- Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are alsa recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Share based payments

The Company operates equity-settled share based remuneration plans for its employees.

For equity-settled share based payments, a liability is recognised for the services acquired, measured initially at
the fair value of the liability. All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share based payment
are measured at their fair values on the grant date. Grant date is the date when the Company and employees have
shared an understanding of terms and conditions on the arrangement.

Where employees are rewarded using share based payments, the fair value of employees services is determined
indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions All share based remuneration is ultimately
recognised as an expense in profit or loss. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is

allocated over the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the number of share options expected
to vest, ]




w

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are

allocated to share capital up to the nominal (or par) value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as
share premium

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be refunded from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the domicile country. Current income tax relating to items
recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and makes provisions wherever appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that itis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is
recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
B Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average.
B Work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of direct material is determined on
weighted average. Work In Progress on construction contracts reflects value of material inputs and expenses
incurred on contracts including profits recognized based on percentage completion method on estimated profits

in evaluated jobs.
P Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average.

B Consumable Stores and construction materials are valued and stated at lower of cost or net realizable value.

B Finished Goods are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Costs are determined on weighted
average method.

P Scrap are valued at net realizable value.

Retirement and other employee benefits

‘Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, family pension fund and employee state insurance contribution
\fis 'a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
Al provident fund, family pension fund and employee state insurance contribution. The company recognizes
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contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service,
If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund and / or creation of provision for unfunded portion of defined gratuity

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit & loss on the earlier of:
P The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

P The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the standalone statement
of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable as a result of the company’s decision to terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The company recognizes these benefits when it has demonstrably undertaken to terminate current employees’
employment in accordance with a formal detailed plan that cannot be withdrawn, or to provide severance

indemnities as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits that will not be paid within
12 months of the balance sheet date are discounted to their present value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits in banks and other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers related to goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary
course of business. If the receivables are expected to be collected in a year or less (or in the operation cycle if
longer), they are classified as current assets. Otherwise, they are recorded as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due in
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The existence of significant financial difficulties on the part
of the debtor, the probability that the debtor will become bankrupt or undertake a financial restructuring, and late

‘payment or default are considered to be indicators of the impairment of a receivable. The amount of the provision

is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
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discounted at the effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is written down as the provision is applied
and the loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. When a receivable is uncollectable, the provision for
receivables is made in statement of profit & loss. Subsequent recoveries of receivables written off are recognized
in the statement of profit & loss for the year in which the recovery takes place.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
the transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or past and future operating cash flows, and items of incomes

and expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating and investing
activities of the company are segregated.

Operating Cycle

Assets and liabilities relating to long term projects/ contracts are classified as current/non-current based on the

individual life cycle of the respective contract / project as the operating cycle. In case of pure supply contracts and
other businesses, the operating cycle is considered as twelve months.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets

that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are added to the cost of those
assets.

Interest income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their deployment is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Investment in Subsidiary / Associate

Investment in subsidiary / associate is carried at cost in the separate financial statements. Investment carried at
cost is tested for impairment as per IND AS 36.

Onerous Contracts

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. An onerous
contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot avoid because it
has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The

cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and
an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities).”

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity

shares and the weighted number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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a)

]

a

Transrail Ughting Limired
CIN: U31506MH2008PLC173012
Notes to Standal Financial 5t

{All figures are Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Financial Assets-Ir

Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Non Current Current

As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current

Investment in Equity shares of Subsidiary Companies
{Unguoted)

Transrall International FZE

200 Shares (PY 200 Shares) of 1000 AED each

Transrail Lighting Malaysia SON BHD 0.02
980 Shares (PY 980 Shares) of 10 MYR each

Transrail Structures America INC.

1,000 Shares (PY 1,000 Shares) of 10 USD each

Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited

1,00,00,000 Shares (PY 1,00,00,000 Shares) of 1 Naira each
Investment in Equity shares of Associate Company (Unguoted)

0.36

0.07

0.20

Burberry Infra Private Limited

5,000 Shares (PY 5,000 Shares) of Rs 10 each

Investment in Mutual Funds®

- Baroda BNP Paribas Banking & P5U Bond Fund

(19,95,900.00 Units of Rs 10.00 each)

- Adityz Birla Mutual Fund Sunlife Government Securities Fund
(1,60,289.76 Units)

- Aditya Birla Sun life Floating Rate Fund
1,55,344.706 Units (PY Nil}

4.90

0.36

0.02

0.07

0.20

0.01

214

109

Total 0.65

4.90

0.66

3.23

Disclosure:-

i} Carried at Amortised Cost 0.65

0.65

if) Investment Carried at Fair Value through Profit & loss

3.23

All the above investments are fully paid up.

Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments Rs 0.65 Crores (P.Y.Rs 0.66 Crores)

Ageregate Value of Quoted Investments Rs 4.80 Crores (P.Y.Rs 3.23 Crores)

Market Value of Quoted Investments Rs 4.90 Crores (P.Y. Rs 3.23 Crores)

*Unlts of mutual fund is marked with a lien against the Credit facility taken from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd.

Financial Assets -Trade Receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2024

Non Current Current

As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current

Unsecured, considered good unless atherwise stated

Considered Good
Credit Impaired [Refer note 8 (b]]
Less: - Provision for Credit Impaired

Less - Allowance for Expectad Credit Loss [Refer note 8 (b))

1,036.79
18.12
{18.12)

1,036.79
(10.65)

654,40
1792
117.52)

654.40
{5.50)

Total

1,026.14

644,50

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule

( Ageing from bill date)

(i} AsatMarch 31, 2024

Range of outstanding period

Undi

Considered Good

Significant increase in credit
risk

Credit impaired

Total

Unbilled

Not Due

Less than & months
6 months - 1 year
1-2 year

2-3 year

>3 years

82642
66.50
76.86
34.27
32.34

121

1691

81642
66.90
78.07
34.27
49.315

Total

1,036.79

18.12

1,054.91

As ot March 31, 2023

Range of outstanding period

Vndi.

ed

Considered Good

Significant increase in credit
risk

Credit impaired

Total

Unbilled
Not Due

Less than 6 months
€& months - 1 year
1-2 year

2-3 year

>3 years

508.79
61.99
3141
13.97
38.23

16.17

508,79
61.93
3288
1425
54.40

654.40

17.92

672,32




b) credit impaired & Expected Credit Loss

The Company estimates impairment under the simplified approach. Accordingly, it does not track the changes in credit risk of trade receivables. The impairment amount
represents lifetime expected credit loss. In view thereof, the additional disclosures for changes in credit risk and credit impaired are not disclosed.

Movement in the Credit Impaired

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 17.92 14,80
Add Created during the year 0.52 312
Less : Released during the year {0.22) -
Closing Balance iB.12 17.92
Movement in the Expected Credit loss As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 9.50 .48
Add Created during the year 115 0,02
Less : Released during the year - =
Closing Balance 10.65 9.50

¢} Trade receivables includes amount of Rs 169.30 Crores (March'23 Rs 148.48 Crores) due from related parties. Refer note 48.

d)

a)

Trade receivables includes amount of Rs Mil. (March'23 Rs Nil | due from companies In which director is a director and member,

Loans
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Loans - Unsecured
Related Parties
Considered Good 25.94 79.00 51.08 12.50
Credit Impaired - 487 - 4.67
Less : Impairment Provision = (4.67) £ (4.67)
Cthers
Considered Good - - -
Staff Loans 0.00 0.12 0.01 0.28
Total 25.94 79.12 51.10 12.78
Details of Related Parties As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Loans - Unsecured
Considered Good
Transrail Lighting Limited - First Capital Energy & Power Ind 137 - 7.36 -
Ltd JV -Nigeria {TLL-FCEP Joint Operation)
Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited 20.17 - 15.88 -
Transrail International FZE 3.83 - 37s -
Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN 0.13 - 0.12 -
Consortium of Jyoti and Transrail ("CJT") - Joint Operation - - - -
Rallsys & Transrail IV 0.45 - 0.45 -
Burberry Infra Private Limited 79.00 19.50 12.50
25.94 79.00 51.09 12.50
Credit impaired
TLL-FCEP 1V-loint Operation - -
Consortium of lyoti and Transrail ("CIT"} - Joint Operation - 4.67 - 4.67

During the period company has given long term loans of Rs 47.00 Crores (P.Y. 2022-23 Rs 12.50 Crores) to its associate M/s Burberry Infra Private Ltd.

b) The Loans are repayable within one year as stipulated, however the same has been classified as Non Current based on Management estimation of its recoverability.

o}

d

Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, Diractors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either severally or jointly with
any other person, that are without specifying any terms or period of repayment,

Type of Borrower As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
O ding Loan % to [A) 2] ding Loan % to (A)

Promoters
Directors
KMPs
Related Parties 6.49 6% 12.48 18%
Total Loans and Advances to Promoter, Director, KMP and 6.49 12.48
Related parties
Total Loans and Advances in the nature of Loan and Advances (A) 109.74 68.55

The Company has advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrewed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entitylies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise] that the Intermediary directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities [dentified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate 3eneficiaries) , the details of which is tabulated hereunder ;

. 1 Name of the Other
Name of the Intermediary (Relationship) Amount & Date Company (Relationship) Amount & Date
2023-24
Burberry Infra Private Limited Rs 47,00 Crores Deepmala Rs 47.00 Crores
(Associate) April'z3-March'24 Infrastructure Private April'23-March'2a
{CIN: U70105MH2021PTC360006) Limited
(Related party)

(CIN: U45201MH2007PTC174676)




2022-23

Burberry infra Private Limited
(Associate)
(CIN: U70108MH202 1PTC360006)

Rs 12.50 Crores
March 31, 2023

Deepmala Rs 12.50 Crores
Infrastructure Private March 31, 2023
Limited
{Not a related party)

(CIN: U45201MH2007PTC174676)

The Company has complied with the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 wherever applicable and the transaction are not violative of the Prevention of

Money Laundering Act 2002.

10 Other Financial Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security De
{Unsecurad, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Deposits
Related Parties - - - -
Others 23.35 801 23.16 7.95
Interest Receivable
Related Parties 6.86 8.02 4.19 =
DOthers o.02 6.0B 103 393
Insurance & Other Claim Receivables - 492 = 4.72
Receivable from Related Party - 8.2 - 218
Mark to Market Gain on Hedge Contract " 138 % 460
Bank Degosits with Remaining Maturity more than 12 months 28,65 - 32.55 -
Crop Com ion B Others - 0.22 - 145
Total G58.88 37.55 60.93 24.83
a) _Details of Related Parties
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Interest Receivable
Transrail Lighting Nigeria Ltd 6.10 - 3.83 -
Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD D.02 - 0.02 —
Transrall International FZE 0.73 - 0.34 -
Burberry Infra Private Ltd - 8.02 - -
Other Receivable
Transrail Lighting Foundation - = -
Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD o.o7 - 0.08
Transrail Structures America INC 0.08 - 0.08
Transrall International FZE 102 - 1.01
Transrail Lighting Nigeria Ltd 0.70 - 073
Transrail Hanbaek Consortium 7.04 - 0.28
11 i
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Current
Raw Material In hand 175.53 159.47
‘Work In Progress 17.28 19.36
Finished Goods
a) In hand 83.61 69.45
Consumable Stores & Spares 4694 33.29
Bought Out Components 52.06 27.49
Others - 5crap 2.36 194
Total 377.7% 311.00
a) The disclosure of i ies recognised as an exp in accordance with paragraph 36 of Ind AS 2 is as follows:
Farticulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Inventory write down 0.07 2.57
Total 0.07 2,57
12 Cash and Bank Balance
12 (a) Cash & Cash Equival
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Current
(i) Balances with Banks 50.54 86.06
{ii) Balance with Banks -Foreign Branches 26.89 27.15
(i) Fixed Deposits with Bank having original maturity less than 3 30.95 3.82
months
(iv) Cheques on Hand - 217
[v) Cash on Hand 0.9g 0.67
Total 109.36 119.87
12 (b) Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Current
Fixed Deposits held as rargin money 114.05 73.41
e = 1 .
< ~ RIJ : ;a\i\ 114.05 73.41
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Contract Assets
Particulars As at March 21, 2024 Asat March 31, 2023
Current Current
Considered Good 1,960.12 1,476.39
Credit Impaired N 11.89 11.89
1,872.01 1,488.28
Less: - Provision for Credit Impaired (11.88) {11.89)
1,960.12 1,476.39
Less - Allowance For Expected Credit Loss [Refer note 8 (b)) (9.04) (9.49)
Total 1,951.08 1,465.90
Contract Assets represents unbilled revenue and retention due to contractual canditions.
Movement in the Credit Loss Allowance As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 11.82 11.44
Add : Created during the year 045
Less : Released during the year - -
Closing Balance 11.89 11.89
Movement in the Expected Credit Loss As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening Balance 9.42 8.85
Add : Created during the year [0.45) 0.64
Less : Released during the year - -
Closing Balance 9.04 9.49
Other Assets (Unsecured, considered good)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current MNon Curreat Current
Capital Advances 154 - 492 -
Advance to Suppliers
Considered Good - Related Parties - 993 - 2.09
Others :-
Considered Good* - 275.63 - 141.16
Credit Impaired 018 1116 0.18 8.86
Less : Impairment Provision (0.18) (11.186) (0.18] [8.86)
Taxes Paid Net of Provisions 43,91 - 13.e8 -
Prepaid Expenses ** 033 43.94 3.50 25.15
Balances with Tax Authorities .72 85.21 9,94 82.14
Deferred Input Tex Credit - 7.52 - 16.40
Staff Advances - 1.85 - 133
Others - 5.17 - 2.40
Total 53.50 429.25 325,04 270.67

* Out of the above advances and amount of Rs 52.26 crores (P Y 5.05 crores) is backed by bank guarantees.
** prepaid expenses includes Rs 4.43 Crores towards Initial Public Offer expenses which will be charged to other equity in subseguent period on completion of Initial Public

Offer & expenses attributable to offer for sale will be recovered from salling share haolder.

Assets Held for Sale

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Current
Office Premises 0.24 0.24
0.24 0.24
The Company’s 3 office premises are classified as "Held for Sale" as they meet the criteria laid down under IND AS 105.
Equity Share Caplital
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Face Value (inRs.) As. 2 each Rs. 10 each
Class of Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares
Authorised Capital 17,50,00,000 35.00 3,50,00,000 35.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 12,39,63,710 24,79 2,27,98,440 22.80
Total 12,39,63,710 24.79 2,27,98,440 22.80
Disclosures:
Reconciliation of Shares
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Numbers A t Numb Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 11,39,92,200 12.80 2,27,08,440 2271
Issued during the year ([Refer note (&) & (f) below) 95,71,510 1.99 90,000 0.08
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 12,39,63,710 24.79 2,27,98,440 22.80

During the year 2017-18, following were issued for consideration other than cash:

i) Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and in accordance with the directions of the NCLT the company has issued 7,25,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each to Gammen India

Limited (GIL).

i} The company has allotted 2,75,000 OFCD's to Gammon India Limited as per the share holders agr

A valertad 2,75,000 equity shares to Gammon India Limited.,

i into bet

1 the company and Gammen India Limited,

/'/_'E_ 2 | ¢ .“~ Gammon India Limited had informed the company that it wished to exercise their rights to convert the aforesaid OFCD's in equity shares. Acculdlngi‘f, the mmpany issued &
CRES
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Pursuant to the conversion of the Optionally Convertible Debentures on 30th October 2017, 30,00,000 equity shares have been issued to M/s Ajanma Holdings Private Limited
and M/s Gammen India Limited and an amount of Rs 48.80 Crores has been credited to Securities Premium account.

Durirg the year 2020-21 the Company has issued 23,689,480 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each on right basis ('Rights Equity Shares’] to the Eligible Equity Shareholders
at an issue price of Rs. 8O per Rights Equity Share (including premium of fs. 70 per Rights Equity Share). In accordance with the terms of Issue, Rs. 20 i.e. 25% of the |ssue Price
per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of Rs 17.50 per share), was received an application, Rs. 20 |.e. 25% of the Issue Price per Rights Equity Share (including a premium

of Rs 17.50 per share), was recelved on allotment. The Board had made First and final call of Rs. 40 per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of Rs. 35 per share) on
shareholders which has been received.

During the year 2021-22, the Company issued 1,51,38,260 equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each at the premium of Rs 10 each on right basis (‘Rights Equity Shares’).

During the year 2022-23, the Company issued 90,000 equity shares of face value of Rs 10 each at the premium of Rs 86.33 each on exercise of ESOP. (Refer Nate No 48)

During the period ending 30th September 2023, the Cc
Preferential ssue on a Private Placement basis.

pany issued 99,75,510 equity shares of face value of Rs 2 each at the premium of Rs 138.40 each by way of a
Pursuant to the recommendation and resclution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors, the Shareholders in their meeting held on dated 12th February 2024 has
approved the split of 1 Equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/- each into 5 equity share of the faca value of Rs. 2/- each.

During the year 2023-24 Company has filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) dated March 08, 2024 for raising fund of Rs 450 Crores by fresh equity through Initial Public
Offer {IPO).

Details of Shareholding by Holding c

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Number of Shares % ber of Shares %
Ajanma Holdings Pvt Ltd 10,53,63,690 85.00% 2,10,72,738 832.43%

Details of Shareholding in excess of 5%

name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Number of Shares % Number of Shares %
Ajanma Holdings Pvt Ltd 10,53,63,690 85.00% 2,10,72,738 92.43%
Asiana Alternative Investment Fund Scheme Asiana Fund | 99,71,510 8.04% - -

Getails of Shareholdings by the Promoter

Name of the Promoter As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Ajanma Holdings Private Limited
No of Shares 10,53,63,690 2,10,72,738
% of total shares 35.00% 92.43%
% change 0.00% -
Digamber Bagde
No of Shares 15,48,540 3,083,708
% of total shares 1.25% 1.33%
% change 0.02% -
Sanjay Kumar Verma
Mo of Shares 50,000 -
% of total shares 0.04% -
% change 0.04% -
Rights and obl of sharehold

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders / members and other declarations, If any, received from shareholders, the shareholding as shown in
clause (it) above represents legal as well as beneficial ownership of the shares.

Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value af R5.10/- each, Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets, if any, of the company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion te the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Other Equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Retained Earnings (Surplus) 837.57 603.64
Security Premium 226.66 88.65
Capital Reserve 62.24 £2.24
Employee Stock Option Outstanding 101 -
Other Compret ive | 11.58 347
Total 1,139.06 758.01

Capital Reserve

As per the order of the National Company Law Tribunal dated March 30, 2017, the issued, paid-up and subscribed share capital of the Company of Rs. 31.00 Crores comprising
of 31,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each has been reduced to Rs. 0.20 Crores comprising of 200,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each/- upon the Scheme of Arrangement
becorming effective. The Scheme of Arrangement is effective from January 1, 2015, the appointed date stated in the scheme, in term of the provision of Section 232(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013. As provided in the scheme, the reduced amount of Rs. 30.80 Crores, has been utilized for adjusting the debit balance in the profit and loss account of the
Company and excess, if any shall be credited to the capital reserve account of the Company. Accordingly, the existing issued, subscribed and paid up Share capital stands

reduced to Rs. 0.20 Crores and an amount of Rs 11.67 Crores has been credited to the opening surplus account and the balance amount of Rs. 19.13 Crores has been credited
to Capital Reserve account.
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Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Maturities Non Current Current Maturities

Term Loans from Banks-Secured
Rupee Term Loan (RTL} -1 2

< 1.89
Rupee Term Loan (RTL) -3 4 + = 0.20
Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) = - & 2.47
Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) - - = 397
Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) 23.85 2015 44,08 2023
Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme 33.02 861 3647 -
(ECLGS 2.0 Extension)
Indian Bank 2.89 .76 2.53 1.08
Term Loans from Others-Secured
Axis Finance Ltd 363 9.36 12.99 24.36
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Ltd 17.28 7.00 2427 5.72
Total 80.67 47;_8_8 120.34 59.91
(a) The company entered into @ Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) with Gammon India Limited (GIL) pursuant to which long term borrowings amounting to Rs 200.13 crores and
short term borrowings of Rs 29.99 crores of GIL were transferred to the Company. Further pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and order of NCLT dated 20th March 2017,
lang term borrowing amounting to Rs 93.35 crores and shart term borrowings amounting to Rs 181.75 crores were transferred to the Company upon execution of novation
agreement with lenders effective from January 1, 2016. The carve out of the barrawing pursuant to the BTA has been substantially completed except few lenders. Carve out of
Non Convertible Debentures, though agreed upen by GIL and the company, is yet to be approved and executed by the debenture holders. The security for the borrowings
assumed under the Scheme of Arrangement has been created.
(b} Securities for Term Loans and NCD as per Novation ag| t with the lenders :

Rupee Term Loan-1 (RTL1), Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) and Funded Interest Term Loan (FITL) thereon -

i) 1st pari-passu charge on the entire Property, Plant and Equipments (movable and immovable), both present and future of the Company.

i 2nd pari-passu charge on the entire Current Assets, Loans and Advances, long term trade receivables and other assets pertaining to the Company.
Non Convertible Debentures

1) First ranking pari passu security interest on entire Property, Plant and Equipments (movable and immovable), both present and future of the company.

Rupee Term Loan-3 ( RTL3)
ii) 2nd pari-passu charge on the entire Property, Plant and Equipments {movable and immovable), both present and future of the Company.

(¢} Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) & ECLGS 2.0 Extension
1) Parl passu 1st charge on assets created of the credit facilities being extended
ii) Pari passu 2nd charge with the existing credit facilities in terms of cash flows (including repayments) and security.
jiii) ECLGS loans carry an interest rate ranging from 7.95 % to 8.25%.

(d

Axis Finance Ltd. - Capex Loan 1

Exclusive charge on the machinery and equipment’s so financed up to 1.25 times and demand promissory niote, loan carries an interest rate of 9.75%. Loan is repayable in
quarterly equal instalment within 21 months

() Auxis Finance Ltd. - Capex Loan 2

Exrlusive charge on the machinery and equipment’s so financed up to 1.25 times and demand promissory note, loan carries an interest rate of 10.75%. Loan Is repayable in
equal instalment within 36 months

(f] Indian Bank Capex Loan

Exclusive charge on the machinery and equipment’s so financed up to 1.25 times , loan carries an interest rate of 11%. Loan s repayable in 10 equal quarterly instalment
within 30 months after Moratorium of 6 months.

(2} Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Ltd. Working Capital Term Loan
a. First Pari-passu charge along with existing term lenders on entire fixed assets of the company (both movable and immovable & both present and future) cwned by the
company
b. Second Pari-passu charge on entire current assets of the borrower company (present and future) with existing working capital lenders
c. Demand Promissory Note for the entire loan along with the interest
Repayment schedule

d. Lean shall be repayable in 48 Equated Monthly Instalments (EMI) repayments commencing at the end of first menth from the date of first disbursement of the loan. Loan
carrles a rate of interest of 11%.

(h}) Repayment Terms
Type of Loan

RTL-1, RTL -3, WCTL Repayable In 11 quarterly unequal instalments commencing en 15 October 2020 and ending on 15 April

2023,

NCD Repayable in 11 quarterly instalments of Rs.2.6 Crores commencing on 15th April 2020 and ending on 15th
October, 2022,

FITL Repayable in 21 guarterly unequal ballooning instalments commencing on 15 April 2018 and ending on 15
April 2023

ECLGS Loan Repayable in 48 egual monthly instalments commencing in April 2022 after an initial moratorium of 12
months from the date of First Disbursement

ECLGS Loan 2.0 ext Repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing in April 2024 after an initial moratorium of 24
months from the date of First Disbursement

Axis Finance Capex Loan 1 Repayable in quarterly equal instalment within 21 months commencing in December 2022 and ending on
June 2024

Axis Finance Capex Loan 2 Repayable in equal instalment within 36 months commencing in February 2023 and ending on January 2026

Indian Bank Capex Loan Repayable in 10 equal quarterly instalment within 20 menths after Moratorium of 6 months commencing in
September 2023 and ending on April 2026

MEMFSL WCTL Loan R bie in 48 Eq d Monthly Instalments (EMI) repayments commencing in May 2023 and ending on
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Maturity profile of Term Loans and NCD

Period As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
0-1years 47.88 59.91
1-2 Years 43.55 46.64
2-3years 22.85 41.86
3-4 years 11.18 21.45
4-5 years 1.79 9.89
More than 5 years 1.29 0.51
TOTAL 128.54 180.26
Reconciliation of Cash flows from financing activities
Particulars Non-current borrowings Current borrowings Total
Opening balance as on 01 April 2022 117.99 351.13 469.12
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) Short Term Borrowings - 154.47 154.47
Transfer Within Categories 21.02 (21.02) -
Loan Taken during the year 100.45 - 100.45
Repayment of Loan (119.12) - (119.12)
As at 31 March 2023 120.34 484.58 604.92
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) Short Term Borrowings - 89.98 89.98
Transfer Within Categories 12.03 (12.03) -
Loan Taken during the year 8.49 - 8.49
Repayment of Loan (60.20) - (60.20)|
As at 31 March 2024 80.67 562.52 643.19

The company has taken fresh loans during the year and have used the borrowings taken from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which they were

taken.

During the year the company has paid all the interest and instalments on time.

Registration of charges or Satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

Registration of Charge

As at March 31, 2024, the Company do not have any charge which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Satisfaction of Charge

There are charges disclosed as outstanding of Rs. 261.47 Crores as at March 31, 2024 in respect of borrowings which have been repaid in FY 2023-24 and charge is yet to be

satisfied.

Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Liabilities under Court Scheme & BTA* 60.06 - 56.67
Payable for Capital Goods

- Micro and Small Enterprises - 0.11 - 1.53

- Others - 313 - 2.67
Interest Accrued - 13.07 - 12.17
Employee Liability - 29.91 - 29.91
Total 60.06 46.22 56.67 46.29

* pursuant to the approval of Scheme of arrangement by NCLT and BTA agreement between Gammon India Limited & Transrail Lighting Limited (TLL) ;there are allocation of
borrowings transferred to the company . The company and lenders also entered in to various agreement for creation of security, but there are certain lenders (Insurance
companies) who have not signed the novation agreements. Since the Insurance companies have not recorded TLL as a borrower, the company is unable to discharge their
liabilities, including interest. In accordance with Legal advise sought in this matter, the Company has disclosed the aforesaid liability on account of NCDs including interest
thereon as Non Current Financial Liability under Court Scheme & BTA pending settlement of Novation issue and recognitions by the holders of NCDs to the novation. Due to

reason mentioned above same is not shown as default.

Lease Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Lease Liabilities - Property, Plant and Equipments - 1.02 0.81 1.69
Lease Liabilities - Office Premises 14.41 8.73 7.51 6.34
Total 14.41 9.75 8.32 8.03
Contract Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
i) Adjustable Receipts - 54.72 - 36.06
ii) Advance from Customer - 875.18 - 504.89
Total - 929.90 - 540.95
Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity 5.43 3.15
Provision for Leave Encashment 5.11 0.61 431 0.51
Provision for Income Tax - 1.48 - 242
Others: -
Provision for Contractual Obligation (refer note (A) below) - 21.60 - 15.36
Provision for expected loss on contracts & 12.81 - 30.03
Total 5.11 41.93 4.31 51.47




A}

U]

A provision is recopnised for the expected amount of shortages on materials to be supplied to the client, rectification and replacement of services performed pursuant to the
eontract with the ciient. Assumption used to calculate the provisions is based on past experience and management estimates.
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Provision for Contractual Obligation
Opening 1536 = 12.92
Provided during the period 6.24 4632
Utilised/(Reversed) during the period (0.00) (43.88)
Closing balance 21.60 15.36
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Provision for Expected loss on contracts
Opening 30.03 3411
Provided during the period (0.03) (0.53)
Utilised/{Reversed) during the period (17.20) |2.55)
Closing balance 12.81 30.03
The disclosures required under Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits” are given below:
pefined Benefit Plan
The Company has an obligation to provide to the eligible employees defined benefit plans such as gratuity. The gratuity plan provides for a lump-sum payment to vested
employees at retirement, death, while in employ t or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days of salary payable for each completed year of

service or part thereof. Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 consecutive years of service. The measurement date used for determining retirement benefit for gratuity is March
1.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlerent and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligaticn.

The Company has defined benefit plans for gratuity which is funded through Life Insurance Corporation of India {LIC) group gratuity scheme.

These plans typically expose the company to the actuarial risks, investment risks, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and salary risk
Actuarial Risk
It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expacted. This can arise due to one of the following reasons

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in Cbligation at a rate that is higher than
cxpected.

Variability in rmortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assurmed mortality rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since
there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary
growth and discount rate.

variabiiity in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected.
The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Investment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability In such

cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are
significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Liquidity Risk

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/retire from the
company there can be strain on the cash flows.

Market risk

Market risk is 2 collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets, One actuarial assumption that has a material effectis the
discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa.
This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of lia bility is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date,

Legislative Risk

Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment

of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligations and the same
will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded

a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined

benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit obligatian at the beginning of the year 9.75 9.08

Obligation in respect of transferred employees

Current Service Cost 142 138

Interest Cost 0.71 0.64

Actuarial (Gain) /Loss 0.64 (0.31)

Benefits paid {0.51) {1.05)

Defined Benefit obligation at the year end 12.02 9.75

b) Reconciliztion of opening and closing balances of fair value

of plan assets®

Fair Value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 6.60 713
Expenses deducted from fund

Interest Income

0.53 0.56
Return on Flan assets excluding amounts Included in Interest (o.08) (o.11)
Income
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) %
Employer Contribution 0.05 0.06
Benefits Paid (0.51) (1.05}
Adjustment to the Opening Fund
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the year end 6.58

*100% planned assets are invested in policy of Insurance




¢} Reconciliztion of fair value of assets and obligations
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year

6.58 6.60
Present value of obligation as at the end of year 12.02 (9.75)
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet (5.43) 13.16)
d) Expenses recognized during the year (Under the head “
Employee Benefits Expense”)
Current Service Cost 142 138
Interest Cost 0.1s 0.08
Net Cost 1.60 1.46
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period
Components of actuarial (gain)/losses on obligation
Due to experience adjustments 0.64 (0.31)
Return on plan assets excluding amount including in interest income 0.08 0.11
Actuarial {Gain)/Loss
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive (Income) / 0.73 (0.20)
Expense
Actuarial assumptions As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Mortality Table Gratuity Funded Gratuity Funded
Discount rate (perannum) 7.20% 7.50%
Withdrawal Rates 5% p.a. at younger ages 5% p.a. at younger ages

reducing to 1% p.a. at older reducing to 1% p_a. at older
ages ages

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 6.00% 6.00%

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take inta account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and
dernand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

A quantitative Sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

Gratuity Plan As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Assumptions Discount rate Discount rate

Sensitivity level 0.5% Increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation 11.42 12,67 9.26 10.30
Salary Growth Rate Salary I Rate

Sensitivity level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation 1261 11.45 10.27 9.27

Withdrawal Rate Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity lavel 10% Increase 10% decrease 10% Increase 10% decrease
impact on defined benefit obligation 12.05 11.99 9.79 5973

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on methad that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as 2 result of reasonable changes in key
assumption occurring at the end of reporting period.

Maturity Profile of the defined benefit obligation

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Within next 12 months 0.67 0.49
Between 2-5 years 2,78 2.37
Between € - 10 years 4.78 3.73
Total expected payments /.23 6.52
(ii) Defined contribution plans
Contribution to Defined Cantribution Plan recognized / charged off for the year are as under:-
As at March 31, 2024 2022-23
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 5.05 4.47
23 Deferred tax Asset (Net)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, Plant and Equipment 25.57 137
Right-of-use Asset 6.64 4.61

3121 3197

Deferred tax assets:

Provisien for Trade Receivable 1251 14.51
Employee Benefits and others tax disallowance 1870 17.46

32.21 3197
Deferred tax Asset (Net) - -
The Company has accounted for Deferred Tax Asset on Tax disallowances on a prudent basis only to the extent of Deferred Tax Liability as there is reasonable probability of
future taxable income to the extent of reversal of temporary tax differences.
24 Other Liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Security Deposits - 110 113
Dutles & Taxes - 2094 13.65
Others - 11.54 7.54
Total - 33.58 - 2232
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Short Term ing;
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Loans repayable on demand:
From Banks

Cash Credit from Consortium Bankers - 53.83 - 67.67

Waorking Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) - 320.68 - 273.43
From Others

Purchase Financing Facility - 115.02 = 83.56

Preshipment Credit in Foreign Currency 25.01 =
Current Maturities of Term Loan - 47.88 - 5991
Total - 562.52 i 484.58
Secured 447.50 40101
Unsecured 115.02 B83.56

Cash Credit facility & WCDL carries an interest rate ranging from 10.15% to 14.95% .

Securities - Cash Credit/WDCL/Preshipment Credit in Foreign Currency from Consortium Bankers :

3} 1st pari-passu charge on the entire Current Assets, Loans and Advances, Long Term Trade Receivables and other assets of the Company,

b) 2nd pari-passu charge over the entire Property, Plant and Equipments (immavable and movable) bath present and future of the Company.

Lien is marked on the units of Mutual Fund of Rs. 4.90 Crores (PY Rs 3.24 Crores) against the Purchase Finance Facility taken from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd and to that extent it
is secured.

1st Pari passu on FOR of Rs.8.50cr, As cut-back to build collateral comfort, to all Working Capital Lenders under Consertium

Borrowings from banks and financial institution on the basis of security of currant assets -

Quarterly returns filed by the company with bank or financial institution are larzely in agreement with books of accounts except insignificant changes as per the details and for
the reasons detailed in Annexure 1.

Trade Payabl
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Trade Payables
- Micro and Small Enterprises 32.23 - 1862
- Others 873.67 - 627.51
- Acceptance (refer note 26 (c} ) 766.23 - £52.89
Total 1;672.13 = 1,3091&
Trade P | ing Schedule
( Ageing from due date of payment)
As at March 31, 2024
Range of outstanding period MSME Others
Undisputed Cisputed lisputed Disputed
Unbilled - = 22038 -
Mot Dus 18.41 - 1,11181 -
Less than 1 year 10.00 - 21101 -
1-2 years 124 - 13.79 -
2-3 year 1323 - 2583 -
> 3 years 1.36 - 57.08 -
Total 32.23 - 1,639.90 -
As at March 31, 2023
Range of outstanding period MSME Others
disputed Disputed Undisputed Disputed
Unbilled = 105.89 -
Not Due 11.70 - 93734 -
Less than 1 year 14.50 - 135.09 =
1-2 years 098 - 20.74 -
2-3 year 0.66 - 20.01 =
>3 years 0.78 - 57.32 -
Total 28.62 - 1,280.40 -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined ta the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the management under the
MSME Act 2006. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

MSME Disclosure
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
MSME Act, 2006
Principal amount due 2792 30.15
Interest due on above 0.30 1.14
Amount of interest paid in terms of Sec 16 of the Micro, Small - -
and Medlum Enterprise Development Act, 2008
- Principal ampunt paid beyond appointed day 171.80 149.01
- Interest paid thereon -
Ameunt of interest due and payable for the period of delay 1.09 2.58
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpalid as at year end 1165 9.65

<) Acceptance includes an amount of Rs 589.27 Crares (P.Y. March'23 Rs. 506.65 Crores) under Letter of credit opened by the lenders of the Company which is secured by the
p V_'\-i._l_nderiy‘lng materials and forms part of secured facility and of lenders an amount of Rs 166,96 Crores (P. Y. Mar'23 Rs. 146.24 Crores) being other acc
i -

eptances are unsecured.
. ¢ L
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27 Current Tax Liability
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Current Tax Liability - net of taxes paid 27.61 - 2168
Total 27.61 = 21.68
28 Revenue from Op
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Sale of Products 177.60 200.78
Income From EPC Contracts 3,813.45 2,874.71
Sale of Services 18.18 10.65
Total 4,009.23 3,086.14
Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Ci ", of the Companies { Indian Acc ing Standards) Rules, 2015

a) Method used to determine the contract revenue :

WMethod used to determine the stage of completion of contract

i|  Revenue disaggregation by type of Service is as follows:

Input Method

estimated cost to complete

Stage of completion Is determined as a proportion of costs incurred up to the reporting date to the total

Major Service Type 2023-24 2022-23
EPC Contract 3,813.45 287471
Sale of Products [ Services 195.77 211.43
Total 4,009.23 3,086.14
ii) disaggregation by geographical regions is as follows: 2023-24 2022-23
InIndia 1,661.92 1,438.84
Outside India 2,347.31 1,647.30
Total 4,009.23 3&86-14
i) R disaggreg: by C Type Is as follows:
Customer Type 2023-24 2022-23
Government Companies® 3,313.95 2,541.48
Non Government Companies 695.28 544.68
Total 4,009.23 3,086.14
* Government Companies include the Indian as well as forelgn government companies
) Contracts are both fixed and variable price contract and changes will result due to Force Majeure f arbitration claims, Price Variation and Quantity Escalation.
b) Movement in Contract Liability
Particulars Opening Received during the period  Adjusted during the Closing
period
March 2024 540.95 1,277.00 (888,05) 920.90
March 2023 460.22 254.48 (173.74) 540.55

¢) Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation

The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations s Rs 10,100 Crares. The projects which substantially involve
transmission and distribution projects have execution life cycle of 18 to 30 months. The Civil EPC projects have an execution life cycle of 24 to 36 months. Out of the balance

unsatisfied contracts, the Company expects to appre

balance unsatisfied performance obligation would be ¢

d)  Contract Price Reconciliation in respect of EPC Contracts

ly execute 55% to 60% 2s revenue in the next 12 months depending upon the progress an such contracts. The
pleted in the sub t year.

2023-24 2022-23
Contract Price 3,639.20 2,757.52
Add / Less : Adjustments - -
Escalations & other Varlations 174.26 11719
Revenue Recognised 3!813.45 2,874.71
29 Other Operating
Particulars 2023-24 202223
Sale of Scrap 43.89 39,28 .
Job Work 1012 7.50
Export Incentive 10.51 993
Sundry Credit Balances written back 2.04 821
Others 0.73 0.53
g&l 67.29 65.51
30 Other Income
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Interest Income 21.05 10.50
Profit on sale of assets 0.57 -
Reversal of Provision of foreseeable loss on contracts 17.20 3.55
Gain on Mutual Fund 0.48 0.08
Profit on Sale of Investment 3.78 -
Miscell Income 10.89 8.09
Total 53.97 22.22
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Cost of M 2ol 4

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Material Consumed (Factory)
Opening Stock 78.53 70,66
Add : Purchases [ Net of Discount ) 1,B00.58 1,32992
Less : Closing Stock (87.35) (78.53)
Material Consumed 1,791.76 1,322.05
Materials Consumed (Sites)
Opening Stock 80.94 7093
Add :Purchases ( Net of Discount ) 460.87 509.37
Less : Closing Stock (88.18) (80.94)
Material ansumecl 453,63 499,36
Total 2,245.39 1,821.41
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Inventory Adjustments - WIP
Work In progress at Opening 19.36 14.56
Work In progress at Closing {17.29) (19.38}
Inventory Adjustments - FG
Stock at Commencement 7139 64.22
Less : Stock at Clasing (85.97) (71.39)
Inventory Adjustments - Bought out Material
Stock at Commencement 27.48 31.24
Less : Stock at Closing (52.086} (27.49)
Total (37.08) (8.21)
Sub-contracting E
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Sub-contracting Exp 498.73 34879
Total 498,73 MA
Employee Benefits Exp
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Salaries, Bonus, Perquisites etc, is8.02 170.63
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme 1.01 -
Contribution to Employees welfare funds 5.93 5.34
Staff Welfare expenses 2.82 2.86
Total 197.78 178.83
Finance Costs
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Interest Expense 138.02 59.00
Interest on lease liability 2.83 157
Interest on direct and indirect tax 284 147
Interest Others 2.82 522
Other Borrowing cost 16.08 12.43
Total 162.59 119.69
Depreciation & Amortisati
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment 42.07 39.58
Depreciation on Right of Use 7.95 6.14
Amortisation 0.12 0.06
Total 50.14 45.78
Other Expenses
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Consumption of Stores and Spares 84.04 62.93
Bank Charges & Bank Guarantee charges 83.65 69.02
Power & Fue| 13.50 8.72
Rent 35.35 2426
Rates & Taxes 15.04 22,25
Repairs & Maintenance
-Bullding 1.94 182
-Machinery 3.05 385
-Others i.70 1.80
Security Expenses 11.58 9.44
Printing & Postage 2.24 2.07
sundry Debit Balances Written off 5.37 2.76
Bad debts written off 114 149
Allewance for Expected and Lifetime credit loss 070 422
Provision for Doubtful Debts 337 5.20
Loss on Sale of PPE - 202
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 2.05

299
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Insurance 58.61 20.14
Director Sitting fees and commission 088 0.57
Donation 0.06 0.11
Travelling Expenses 18.86 13.04
Vehicle Expense 29.62 22.04
Project Consultancy Charges 9.24 20.30
Freight & Dther Expenses 121.67 17276
Net Foreign Exchange (Gain)/Loss 337 (17.12)
Professional Fees 60.71 23.99
Remuneration to Auditors
- Audit Fees 0.80 0.60
- Certification & Others 0.06 0.04
Foreign Branch Auditors Fees 0.23 033
Other Expenses 52.48 3482
Total 693.41 517.46

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (CSR)

The company is covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following is the disclosed with regard to CSR activities:-

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 2.05 195
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 2.05 1.95
-Ongoing 2.05 1385
- Other than ongoing -
Amaunt spent during the year on:
Construction/acquisition of any asset =
On purposes other than {a) above
i) For 23-24 051
ii) For 22-23 1.44 0.51
iii) For 21-22 0.57 177
iv) For 20-21 1.03
v) For previcus years =
Total 252 332
Shortfall at the end of the year, 154 1.44
Total of previous years shortfall, -
Reason for shortfall NA NA
Nature of CSR activities-
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and -
reconstruction activities
Social causes including education and health care 252 202
Ensuring animal welfare 0.05
Rural Development 1.25
252 3.32
Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per
relevant Accounting Standard,
Name of the related party 2023-24 2022-23
Transrail Foundation 194
The movement in the provision during the year is disclosed hereunder:
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Opening Provision 2.01 2.34
Spent during the year (2.01) (1.77)
Created during the year 1.54 1.44
Closing Provision 154 20
Disclosures under section 135(6)
In case of 5. 135(6) (Ongoing Projects)
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Opening Balance
- With Company 1.44 2.34
- In Separate CSR unspent account 0.29 =
- with Implementing agency 0.28
Amount transferred from Company’s Bank account to Separate 144 234
CSR unspent account
Amount required to be spent during the year 205 1.5
Armount spent during the year
- From Company's Bank Account 0.51 0.51
- From Separate CSR unspent account 201 1.77
Carry forward to future years 1.54 1.44
Excess Spent during the year -
Closing Balance
- With Company 154 1.44
-In Separate (SR unspent account 0.29

- With Implementing Agency

0.28




38 Tax

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Reconciliation of statutory rate of tax and effective rate of tax:
1. Current Tax-Domestic 84.87 39.00
2. Deferred Tax Liability / (asset) - -
3. Excess Provision of earlier years - 1.73
Total 84.87 40.73
Accounting Profit before Income Tax 319.53 150.13
At India’s statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on profit 80.42 37.78
Effect of non deductible expense 24.60 25.96
Effect of deductible expenses (20.15) (24.74)
Current Tax Expense for the year 84.87 39.00

Significant Cc of Deferred Tax for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Opening (01-04-2023) Recognised in Profit Closing (31-03-2024)
and Loss

Property, Plant and Equipment (27.37) 1.80 (25.57)
Right of Use Asset (4.61) (2.03) (6.64)
Provision for Trade Receivable and Loans 14.51 (2.00) 12.51
Employee benefit and other tax disallowance 17.46 2.24 19.70
Significant Components of Deferred Tax for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Opening (01-04-2022) Recognised in Profit Closing (31-03-2023)

and Loss
Property, Plant and Equipment (28.05) 0.68 (27.37)
Right of Use Asset (2.15) (2.46) (4.61)
Provision for Trade Receivable and Loans 12.14 2.37 14.51
Employee benefit and other tax disallowance 18.06 (0.60) 17.46
39 Earnings Per Share
Earnings Per Share (EPS) = Net Profit attributable to Shareholders / Weighted Number of Shares Outstandin|
Particulars For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Net Profit attributable to the Equity Share holders (Rs in Crares) 234.66 109.40
Outstanding Number of Equity Shares at the Beginning of the 11,39,92,200 11,35,42,200
year
Share Issued during the year 99,71,510 4,50,000
Closing number of shares at the end of year 12,39,63,710 11,39,92,200
Weighted Number of Shares during the period — Basic 11,90,59,689 11,42,91,789
Weighted Number of Shares during the period — Diluted 11,80,59,689 11,42,91,789
Earning Per Share — Basic (Rs) 19.71 9.57
Earning Per Share — Diluted (Rs) 19.71 9.57

Note:

approved the split of 1 Equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/- each into 5 equity share of the face value of Rs. 2/- each.
In terms of Paragraph 64 of Indian Accounting Standard 33 Earnings per Share, if the number of ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of share spilit, the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented shall be adjusted retrespectively. If these changes occur after the reporting period but before the financial
statements are approved for issue, the per share calculations for those and any prior period financial statements presented shall be based on the new number of shares. The

calculation of basic and diluted EPS has been considered considering the impact of share split as stated above

40 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS — 116 “Leases”, of the C 11

(indian Acc ing Stand
A) For changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the period ended March 31, 2024 Refer Note 4

B) _The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

ds) Rules, 2015.

Pursuant to the recommendation and resolution passed at the meeting of the Board of Directors, the Shareholders in their meeting held on dated 12th February 2024 has

Particulars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 9.75 8.03
One to five years 19.24 10.72
More than five years - -
Total 28.99 18.75
C) _The following is the movement in lease liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning 16.35 7.40
Addition in liability during the year 16.22 15.16
Reversal on account of termination during the year (0.85) =
Interest on lease liabilities 2.83 1.57
Payment of lease liabilities {10.39) (7.78)
Closing balance 24.16 16.35

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as

and when they fall due.




a1 Joint Operations

Particulars Ownership Interest Ownership Interest
Joint Op i 3 march 31, 2024 March 31,2023
i) Consortium of Jyoti Structures 1td & Transrail Lighting Ltd (CIT) (Bhutan) 50% 50%
i} Transrail Lightiog Ltd - First Capital Energy & Power Ind Ltd JV [Nigeria) TLL-FCEP V- 30% 0%
Nigeria
i) Railsys engineering Pt Ltd & Transrail Lighting Limited -}V [REPLTLL V] 43% 49%
iv) Transrail Lighting Ltd & Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt Ltd. {GECPLTLL wj 95% 95%
v]  TLL Metcon Pravesh IV 60% 60%
v} TLL-EVRASCON n 0% 70%
vii) Transrail Hanbaek Consortium 100% 100%
vill) ALTIS-TLLIV 43% 45%
i) TLL-ALTISIV BO% -

42 Segment Reporting

The Company Is primarily engaged in Engineering, procurement and Construction business (EPC) relating 1o infrastructure inter alia relating to products, projects and
engineerings. Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer (Chief Operating Decision Maker} monitors the operating results of its business units for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allccation and performance assessment as 2 whole. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with
prefit or loss in the financial statements. The CODM reviews the Company’s performance on the analysis of the profit of the company on an entity jevel basis. The management
is of the opinion that the company continues to operate under 2 single segment of Engineering and Projects and hence the Company has only ene reportable segment
Engineering & Projects.

Entity level disciosure as required in Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting” of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

The Company principally operates in the business of Engineering, procurement and Construction business (EPC) relating to Infrastructure and the major customers are
primarily State or Central utifities of the country in which such projects are undertaken and private BOT pperators in the business of laying and operating Transmission Lines.
During the period there were Two [P.Y.Three] government customers that contributed for more than 10% of the turnover RS 1971.41 Crores (March'23 Rs 1731.12 Crores).

b Information about Geographical areas

Particulars Revenue Revenue

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Domicile country 1,661.92 1,438.94
Foreign countries 2,347.31 1,647.30
Total 4,000.23 3,086.14

R
The revenues attributed to a specific country is basically determined by the country from where the contract has been secured by the company.

¢ Non Current Assets other than Financial Assets, DTA, Employment Benefit Assets, Insurance contract.

P———

particulars Assets Assets
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Dormicile country 342.69 27131
Foreign countries 10.22 5264
Total ’ 352.91 363.95
43 Fairv

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are i) recognised and measured at fair value and (i}
measured at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed.

Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities.

Level 2 = Inputs other than quoted prices inclu ded within Level 1 that are ohse rvable for the asset or iahility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indire ctly (i.e. derived from prices)

Leve! 3 - Inputs for the assets or lizhilities that ar= not based on observable market data {unchservable inputs).

1 Recognised and measured at fair value
The Company has not recognised any of the outstanding financial instrument as an March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 at fair value except as disclosed in the below in note

{2}

2 'Measure at amortized cost for which fair value is disclosed.
The Company has determined fair value of all its financial instr 1t d at amortized cost.
The followi hods and ptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i) Long-term fixed-rate of borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates.

i} The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Particulars Date of Valuation Fair value ement using
Cuoted prices in Significant Significant unobservable
active markets observable inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2} (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Mutual funds - Growth plan 31,03.2024 -
Mutual funds - Growth plan 31.03.2023 -
Financial Assets
Forward contracts 31.03.2024 1.28
Forward contracts 31.03.2023 4,60

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period.

44 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other reserves attributable to the equity share holders of the company.
The primary objective of the Company’s capital r gement is to maximi the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the lenders terms and conditions. To

malntain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehalders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.




Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Long Term Borrowings B0.67 120.34
Short Term Borrowings 562.52 484.58
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 109.36 119.87
Netdebt  * . 53383 485.05
Total capltal 1,163.86 7B0.81
Gearing ratio (in times) 0.46 0.62

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amaongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets lenders terms and conditions attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the terms and conditions would permit the bank to immediately call
|oans and borrowings. The Company has not breached any term and conditions of any interest-bearing loans and hborrowing.

No changes were made in the objecti policies or processes for 1 ging capital during the period ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

45 Financial Instruments
A Categories of finandial instruments

As at March 31, 2024

particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets

Mon Current Investments - - 0.65
Current investments 4.80 - -
Trade recelvables = - 1,026.14
cash and Bank Balances - - 223.41
Loans = = 105.07
Others | ial Assals 138 = §5.05
Total 6.28 = 1,450.33
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - % 643.19
Trade payables = - 1,672.13
other financial liabllities - : - 106.28
Total - - 2,421.60

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars FVTPL FVTOC! Amuortised Cost
Financial Assets

Men Current Investiments - g 0.66
Current Investrments 323 - -
Trade receivables % - 644,90
Cash and Bank Balances - - 133.27
Loans - = 63.87
Others Financial Assets 4.60 = 81.17
Total 7.83 - 983.87
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings - g 604.92
Trade payables - = 1,209.02
Other financial liabiiities 5 - 102.96
Total - - 2,016.90

The management assessed that fair value of cash and shart-term depaosits, trade recelvables, trade payables, book overdrafts and other current financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term ities of these instr The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount
at which the instrument could be exchanged ina current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

46 Financial risk management objectives and policies
a) Financial Risk management objectives
1 The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the

Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

2 The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior manag t oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior
management is supported by an appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company which provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the
Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed In accordance with the

Company's policies and risk objectives. It is the Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews
and lays down policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

w

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts and commeodity future contracts o mitigate the risk of changes in excharnge
rates on foreign currency exposures and changes in price of commodities. The counter party for these contracts is generally a multinaticnal bank, financial institution or
exchange. These derivative financial instruments are valued based on guoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly
observable in the marketplace. Mark to Market gain or loss on derivative instruments is part of other current financial assets or liabilities.

b} Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. tarket risk comprises three types of
risk namely interest rate risk, currency risk and commadity risk. Financlal instruments affected by market risk include receivables, pay bles, net i t in foreign

operations, loans and borrowings and depasits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections on the financial assets and Financial liabilities relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The following assumptians have been made in calculsting the sensitivity analysis:

« The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt as at March 31, 2024 and March
31,2023,

« The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratulty and other post-retirement obligations; pravisions; and the non-financial
assets and liabilities.

» The sensitivity of the relevant profit ar \oss itemn is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.




c) Interest rate risk

d)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financtal instrumant will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term and shart term debt abligations with floating interest rates.

Presently the borrowings of the company are subject to a floating interest regime at MCLR specified In the respective financing agreements, which Is subject to variation in rate
of interest In the market. Considering the present market seenario the Company’s policy is to maximise the borrowings at MCLR based variable interest rate.
Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that pertion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables
held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate barrowings, as follows:

Variation in interest (basis points) As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Increase by 50 Basis points (3.22) (2.02)
Decrease by 50 Basis points 3.22 3.02

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense and monetary assets & liabilities is denominated
in a foreign currensy) .

Foreign Currency Exposure unhedged as at March 31, 2024 |s Rs 1128.07 Crores { PY Rs 842.62 Crores ) for Trade and Other Receivables and Rs 518.60 Crores (PY Rs 430.83
Crores) for Trade and Other Payables.

lor Un-hedged Foreign Currency Exposures:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
. Foreign Currency in Amount Foreign Currency in Amount
“000" In INR Crores "goo” In INR Crores
Trade and other Receivables

usb 9105158 . 75879 75,336.29 619,39
EUR 9,160.80 8238 4,725.46 42.34
GEBP - - - -
AED 44977 102 449,77 101
MYR 53.47 0.09 27.37 0.05
BTN - - B2,302.67 B.28
CAD - - - -
KSH 7.347.42 0.486 3,78,156.92 2330
HGN 84,667.71 0.50 1,15,8956.77 213
EDT 26,38,998.30 198.22 9,07,084.36 63.78
GHS 30.85 0.02 979,78 0.68
fleh] 153.24 1.80 #se.11 3.00
MZN 12,797.88 1.65 51,902.56 6.62
QAR 1,785.68 4.05 1,785.68 3.99
SEK -0.00 -0.00 243,19 0.75
AFA 12,297.08 139 13,602.05 1.27
uGx 47,909.85 0.10 8,91,403.37 1.93
NID 80,988.72 i8.14 71,026.45 15.77
CFA 14,74,051.28 2021 26,83,730.95 36.56
THB 18,437.74 4.22 27,342.59 6.57
PHP 1,655.55 0.25 1,357.43 0.21
SZL 4,475.72 197 = 7
GMD 29,568.07 3.62 - -
SRD 3642231 8.57 - =
AUD - - - -
CHF - - " -
LAR - - - -
BIF : = = -
25 63,85,602.64 20.59 -




For Un: ged Foreign Currency E» es:
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Foreign Currency in Amount Foreign Currency in Amount
"poo” In INR Crores "oo0" InINR Crores

Trade and other Payables )

usp 31,681.74 264,02 33,311.43 273.88
EUR 824,38 7.41 5,289.33 47.40
CAD 1.20 0.01 - .
BTN - # £5,862.74 6.59
KSH 27,089.15 189 3,84,996.51 2372
AFS5 - s = -
FCOFA - - - -
BDT 24,67,143.80 18531 6,10,381.82 46.28
GHS - = 519.28 0.36
Jop - & 4.15 0.05
SEK - - = -
MZN 3,912.97 0.51 4,302.98 0.55
NIO 1,05,390.48 23.61 9331130 20.72
UGX 79,968.85 0.17 4,79,840.52 1.04
AFA 32,260.17 3.65 28,919.20 s s
CFA 12,06,282,23 16.54 5,52,600.71 7.53
THB 18.62 0.00 85.40 0.02
PHP 15.00 0.00 - -
GBP - - = -
AUD 123 0.01 = -
748 1,855.83 0.24 - -
GMD 9,211.63 113 - =
SRD 45,186.90 10.64 = =
QAR 10.52 D.0z - -
BIF 2,391.15 0.01 - =
TS 9,38,305.92 3.03 - -

518.60 430.83
The company has desigl d following forward contract as a fair value hedge which are outstanding as under :
Particulars No. of Contracts Currency Type Foreign Amount
Currency in In INR Crores
000"

As at March 31, 2024

Sell USDAINR 3 usp 12,500.00 104.22
As at March 31, 2023 - - -

Sell USD/INR T uso 26,265.80 215.95

e) Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably pessible change in USD, EUR, BOT and CFA exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact

on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of revenue or expense and monetary assets & liabilities. The Company’s exposure to fereign currency
changes for all other currencies is not material.

Variation in exchange rate (34)

Effect on profit before tax Effect on profit before tax
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

usp
Increase by 5% 24.74 17.28
Decrease by 5% (24.74) (17.28)
EUR
Increase by 5% 3.75 (0.25)
Decrease by 5% (3.75) 0.25
BDT
Increase by 5% 0.65 112
Decrease by 5% {0.65) 11.12)
CFA
Increase by 5% 0.18 1.45
Decrease by 5% (0.18) (1.45)

f} Commodity price risk
The Company Is affected by the price volatility of the major commedities. The company's operating activities require the ongoing purchase and manufacture of tower,
conductars and poles and therefore require a continuous supply of Steel, Aluminium and Zinc. It may be observed that all the three metals have significant volatility in the
prices during the year. However in case of steel which is the major item, there Is no marketplace to manage the price risk. The C y holds derivati
such as commodity future contract to mitigate the risk of changes in Aluminium prices.
Further substantial part of our revenues during the year were covered by escalation clauses which addresses the price volatility to a large extent.

financial instr

Due to the significantly increased volatility of the price of the Steel, Aluminium and Zinc, during the year the Company entered into various purchase contracts for Steel,
Aluminium and Zine at specific rates to manage the risk of the costs. The prices in these purchase contracts are linked to market rates,
The Company’s Board of Directors has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commedity price risk and its mitigation.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, |eading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to

credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade recejvables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
instruments.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established pelicy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on the ability of the customer to hanour his commitments. The credit quality is also assessed on factors like state/central sponsored
undertaking, financial strength of the customer, assurance of payments like LC or Guarantees etc. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly monitored and any
shipments to major customers are generally covered by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. Retention is considered as part of r which is pay an

completion of the project and achieving the completion milestones. In certain contracts the retention would be realised on submissicn of a Bank guarantee, which is submitted
as per the terms of the contract with customer.




An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minar receivables are consolidated into an
homogenous class and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum expesure te credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets

disclosed in Note 43. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentratio
customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and of

In addition, the company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantees given by the company on behalf
guarantees have been Issued to the banks on behalf of the joint cperations.

any claim under such guarantee is remote.

h

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Cradit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to eacl
Board of Directors on an annual basis, and updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the co

counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liguidity planning tool. The Com,
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures and other instruments.
schedule specified in the financing agreements with the lenders.

in largelyi

t markets.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

n of risk with respect to trade recelvables as low, as its

of joint operation (net of group share).These financial
Based on the expectations at the end of reporting period, Company considers the likelihood of the

the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of
h counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's
ncentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through

pany’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
As at March, 31, 2024 no term loan has matured based on the repayment

Particulars Upton One year Two - Five year Total

As at March 31, 2024

Long term Borrowing 47.88 80.67 17854
Short term Borrowings 514.64 - 514.64
Trade Payables 1672.13 167213
Other Financial Liabilities 45.22 60.06 106.28
Lease Liahilities 9.75 14.41 24.16
Total 2,290.62 155.14 2,445,75
Particulars Upto One year Two - Five year Total

As at March 31, 2023

Long term Borrowing 59.91 120.24 180.25
Short term Borrowings 424,67 42467
Trade Payables 1,305.02 - 1,309.02
Other Financial Liabilities 46.29 56.67 102.96
Lease Liabilities 8.02 8.32 16.36
Total 1,847.93 185.33 2,033.26

The disclosed financial instruments in the above table are the gross undiscounted cash flows. However, those amounts may be settled gross or net.

il Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when & number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that

would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or cther conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive cancentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified partfolio

which Includes assessing of geopolitical factors, country risk assessment and other factors to have diverse custamer relationships. Identified concentrations of credit risks are
controlled and managed accordingly.

k) Collateral

As mentioned in note no 18 and 25 the assets of the company are hypothecated/charged to the lenders for the borrowings and the non-fund based facilities provided by them.
There are no collaterals provided by the shareholders or any other person.

47 Contingent Liabilities and Commit
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

A Contingent Liabilities

i) Bank Guarantees issued by the bankers i77.88 12092
i} Indirect tax matters for which Company has preferred appeal 88.15 83.12
i) Direct tax matters for which Company has preferred appeal €5.20 29.88
iv) Others 15.59 596

B Commitments

i} Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 5.44 4.17

Capital Account and not provided for in accounts.
ii) Other Commitment 16.63 62.50

48 Emgployees Stock Option Scheme (ESOP)

A) Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) - 2023
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The Company had implemented Employee stock option scheme as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 08th September 2023. As per the scheme
company may grant ESOP to identified employees meeting certain criteria. Details of the options granted during the period under the scheme are as given below.

a) The exercise price of the options was adjusted to Rs. 702.00 per option and
b) The Option Holder shall have the right to subscribe/apply for one equity shares of the company against each option held.

Plan details Grant Date Total Options under | Number of Option granted Exercise price per Vesting Period
the Plan option
~|ESOF Plan -2023 September 08, 2023 4,586,000 2,66,450 Rs 702.00 3 to 5 Years
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The options are granted at an exercise price, which Is fair value at the time of such grants. Each option entitles the halder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment
of one equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Pursuant to Sub-Division of Face Value of Equity Shares to Rs 2/- Nomination and Remuneration Committee vide circular resolution dated February 20, 2024 approved revision

in the terms that “each Option will entitle the participant to 5 (five) Shares of the Company and options Issued to the grantee shall always be convertible Inte equity, shares
only and there shall be no change in the exercise price”.

Stock option activity under the sch [s) for the period ended 31st March, 2024 is set out below:
Particulars No. of opti ighted average Weighted average
exercise price (Rs) per | Remaining contractual life

option (years)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - = &

Granted during the year 2,66,450 702.00 3.84

Forfeited/cancelled during the year 21,380 - -

Exercised during the year - - -

Options lapsed during the year - - -

| Exercisable at the end of the year = d =

The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing fair value considering the following inputs:

Particulars First Vesting Second Vesting Third Vesting

Expected volatility 39.25% 39.25% 39.25%

Risk-free interast rate TA7% 7.17% 747%

Weighted average share price [Rs.) 702 702 702

Exercise price {Rs.) 702 a2 J02

Expected life of options granted in years 3 4 5

Weighted average fair value of options (Rs.) 244.63 286.82 323.44

The effect of share based psyment transactions on the entity’s profit or loss for the period is presented below:

Particulars As at March 31,2028 |

Share based payment expense (Rs. In Crores) 1.01

|Balance in Emnployee Stock Option Outstanding 1.01

B} Employees Stack Option Scheme (ESOF) -2019

The Company had implemented Employee stock option scheme as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 26th February 2019. During the previous
year (FY 2022-23}, the company came up with the corporate action vide rights issue of equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 at the issue price of fis. 80/ per share. Thus on account
of corporate action vide Rights issue carried out by the company after the grant of the options, the meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Comrmittee of the board was
held on 15th December, 2020 and appraved modification in the ESOP Scheme. During the year (FY 2022-23), the company came up with the corporate action vide rights issue
of equity shares in the ratio of 1:2 at the issue price of Rs. 20/- per share. Thus on account of corporate action vide Rights issue carried out by the company after the grant of
the options, the meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board was held on 5th January, 2022 and approved following medification in the ESOP Scheme.

3] The exercise price of the options was adjusted to Rs. 578/~ (Rs. 438/- Plus 80 Rs./-) per option and
b) The Option Helder shall have the right to subscribe/apply for six equity shares of the company against each option held

Scheme details Grant Date/Vesting Period |No. of options Granted| Original exercise price per | Modified exercise price Modified exercise price as
option as per corporate action | per corporate action as on
as on 31.03.2021 31.03.2022
ESOP Scheme -2019 July 29 2019 60,000 Rs 418/- for 60,000 Options | Rs. 498/-for 60,000 | Rs. 578/- for 60,600 antions
1 year aptions

The options are granted at an exercise price, which is fair value at the time of such grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek allotment
of six equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The Company has carried out fresh assessment of the fair valuation of the option before and after the corporate action to determine additional cost, if any, to be charged to
the statement of Profit and Loss as ESOP Compensation Cost.

The fair valuation carried as per Black Scholes method by an independent valuer has determined the additional charge of Rs. NIL per option outstanding. Since the vesting Is

completed this difference in fair value changes, if any, is charged to the statement of profit and loss iImmediately as required by INDAS 102. The Fair value changes and
disclosures are detailed hereinafter.

ii] Stock option activity under the sct s) for the year ended 31st March, 2023 is set out below:

Particulars No. of options Weighted B ighted g

exercise price (Rs) per | Remaining contractual life
option {years)

Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 60,000 Rs. 578* 0.33 years

Granted during the year - - -

Forfeited/cancelled during the year - - -

Exercised during the year 15,000 Rs. 578% -

Options lapsed during the year 45,000 - -

Exercisable at the end of the year - - -

* Modified as per corporate action.

iii) The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing fair value con sidering the following inputs:

Particulars ESOP Scheme -2019
Original Medification due to Modification due to
corporate action in | corporate action in 2021-22
2020-21

Expected volatility 36.37% 59.17% 31.37%

Risk-fres Interest rate 6.46% 6.04% 7.36%

Weighted average share price (Rs.) 418 498 578
. Exercise price (Rs.) 418 498 578
=y :"‘\ !Expecteui life of options granted in years 2 2 2
— _‘_f;v’ Weighted average fair value of options (Rs.) 107.47 116.97
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Disclosure 2s required by Accounting Standard — IND AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures" of the Companles {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 are given in Annexure - ||
Analytical Ratios as per requirement of Schedule 1l are given in Annexure - lii

The information about transaction with struck off Companies (defined under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956} has been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the Company and the same is relied upon by the auditors.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
The Company has nat traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company does not have any investments through more than two layer of investment companies as per section 2(87)(d) and section 186 of Companies Act, 2013,
The Company has not ravalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank er financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance
with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped and restated to make them comparable with the figures of the current year.

The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of material accounting policy information and the other
explanatory notes forms an integral part of the financial statements of the Company for the perind ended March 31, 2024.

As per our report of even date attached. (
For Nayan Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Direftors
Chartered Accountants T, "‘1
FRN. 107023W Al el iy
v B\ —
h f =/ h D C Bagde Randge|
\..M * ﬂge._.ﬂo S [ A A I

Executive Chairman

DIN - 2564
i N Padmanabhan
Partner
M.Ne. 036410
Ajit Pratap Singh Gandhali Upadhye
Mumbai, May 24, 2024

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer



Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN: U31506MH2008PLC179012
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All figures are Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Annexure |

Returns/statements submitted to the Bank and Financials Institution

SrNo | Quarter| Sanction Name of Bank As per Books of Amount as Amount of Reason for Variance
Amount Accounts reported in the -difference
quarterly
1| Mar-24 3,529.54 |Canara and Consortium Member Banks 1,713.61 1,537.92 (175.69)
Mar-23 3,953.93 |Canara and Consortium Member Banks 1,228.95 1,220.41 (8.54)
2| Dec-23 3,621.70 | Canara and Consortium Member Banks 1,340.98 1,383.57 42,59 | The difference is due to Exclusion of slow / non
Dec-22 |  3,621.70 |Canara and Consortium Member Banks 1,105.10 1,092.97 (12.13)| - moving and scrap stock not forming part of
quarterly statement and working
3| Sep-23 3,529.54 |Canara and Consortium Member Banks 1,225.59 1,476.14 250.55 | capital/mobilisation advances on which DP is
Sep-22 3,621.70 |Canara and Consortium Member Banks 1,094.85 1,082.77 (12.09) not availed.
4| Jun-23 3,953.93 |ICICI and Consortium Member Banks 4,203.49 3,868.56 (334.93)
Jun-22 3,621.70 |ICICI and Consortium Member Banks 1,103.94 1,091.65 (12.29)
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Annexure - [l

Disclosure as requi

d by Accounting Standard — IND AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

Relationships:

Entity where control exists :
Ajanma Holdings Private Limited - Holding company
Freysinnet Prestressed Concrete Company Limited (FPCC) w.e f. February 07, 2024

Cyheidl Company

a) Transrail International FZE.

b) Transrall Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD
) Transrail Structures America INC

d) Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited

Associate Comp
Burberry Infra Private Limited upto November 23,2023

Joint Operation
Consortium of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrall Lighting Ltd (CIT) (Bhutan)
Transrail Lighting Limited - First Capital Energy & Power Ind Ltd JV (Nigeria)
Transrail - SAE Consortium - Tanzania
Railsys Engineers Pvt. Ltd. - Transrial lighting Ltd. (REPL TLLJV)
Transrail Lighting Ltd & Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. (GECPLTLLIV)
TLL Metcon Pravesh JV
Transrail Hanbaek Consortium
TLL-EVRASCON JV
IDT Cem - Transrail Consrtium
ALTIS-TLLIV
TLL - Hyosung T & D India Pvt Ltd.
TLL=ALTIS IV
Transrail - Universal Cables (UNISTAR) Consortium - Suriname
Transrail - CSPP Consortium - Thailand

Entities where controls / significant infl
a) Chaturvedi SK & Fellows

b) Transrail Foundation

) JLN Yash & Co.— Mr. Jeevan Lal Nagori ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 27.09.2023

& by KMP's/Directors and their relatives exist

d) Freysinnet Prestressed Concrete Company Limited (FPCC) w.e.f. 25.08.2023 and up to 06.02.2024.

€} Burberry Infra Private Limited w.e.f. November 24 ,2023
f) Deepmala Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. w.e.f. March 12, 2024
Key Management Per 1and their rel

Mr. D C Bagde - Executive Chairman

Mr. Randeep Narang - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Srikant Chaturvedi (Director)

Mr. Sai Mohan (Independent Director up to June 04, 2023)

Mr. Jeevan Lal Nagori - { Executive Director up to April 30, 2023, Non Executive Director w.e.f. May 31, 2023 and ceased to be a Director w.e.f. 27.09.2023

Ms. Ravita Punwani - {Independent Director)
Mr.
Mr. Vinod Dasari (Independent Director) w.e.f August 10,2023

Mr. Ranjit Jatar (Independent Director) w.e.f August 10,2023

Mr. Ashish Gupta {Independent Director) w.e.f August 10,2023

Major General Dr. Dilawar Singh retd. (Independent Director) w.e.f September 14, 2023

Mr Jalaj Dani | Non Executive Nominee Director appointed w.e.f 23rd oct, 2023 and ceased top be director from 27th Feb,2024)

Ms. Vita Jalaj Dani ( Non Executive N Director

ppointed w.e.f. 29th Feb,2024}

. Sanjay Verma (Non-Executive Director up to May 30, 2023, re-designated Independent Director and re-designated as non executive director from September 14, 2023.

Entities where
controls /
., Key significant )
Teaneacirs ot | SubsdoryCo | Management |intuencebykmps| o UL | CEUIL | Toul
Personnel and their relatives
exist/Fellow
Associate
Sale of products - - - = 389.97 - 389.97
- - - - (407.01) = (407.01)
- TLL-METCON-PRAVESH-IV - - - E 105.09 - 105.09
- - - - (153.55) - (153.55)
- GECPL-TLL-IV - - - - 123.27 - 123.27
u = - 2 (200.69) - (200.69)
- ALTIS-TLL-IV - - - - 90.89 - 90.89
. - . - (24.27) - (34.27)
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium - - - - 70.438 70.48
x = - - (17.59) - (17.59)
- Railsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd. -TLLJV (REPL-TLLIV) - - - - 0.24 - 0.24

(0.92)




Entities where
controls /
Key significant
t As:
Tamecions oo | siryco | wmogmen: mtoaebyivrs| o | e | s
oon Personnel and their relatives s Ry
exist/Fellow
Associate
Purchase of Goods / Services 2.44 6.83 - 425 4.29 - 17.80
- {5.17) - (0.40) (3.13) = (8.70)
- JLN Yash & Co. - - - 0.23 E - 0.23
-Freysinnet Prestressed Concrete Company Limited (FPCC) - - - 3.62 - = 31.62
- Chaturvedi Sk & Fellows - = = 0.40 = = 0.40
; - - (0.40) . - (0.40)
- Railsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd. -TLLJV (REPL-TLL V) - - - - 0.87 - 0.87
- TLL-FCEP IV-Nigeria = - - - = = -
- - - - (3.13) m (3.13)
-Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited - 4.34 - - = - 434
- (3.00) - - - - (3.00)
-Transrail International FZE = 248 = = = = 2.49
- (2.17) - = % = (2.17)
- GECPL-TLL-IV - = - = 341 = 3.41
- Ajanma Holding Pvt. Ltd. 2.44 = - = - = 2.44
Interest Expenses 0.01 - S - 0.88 - 0.89
- Ajanma Holding Pvt. Ltd. 0.01 - = - = - 0.01
- TLL-ALTIS IV - - = - 0.05 - 0.05
- ALTIS-TLL-IV - = - 0.82 - 0.82
Donation - = = - - - -
- - - (0.10) - - (0.10)
- Transrail Foundation = - - v B 3 %
- - = (0.10) - = {0.10)
Towards Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure - - - - - - -
- - - (1.94) - - (1.94)
- Transrail Foundation - = = = = - =
- - - (1.94) - - (1.93)
Other Expenses (Share of expenses) - - - = i " .
- Consartium of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrail Lighting Ltd (CIT) ( - - - - - - -
Funds Recelived / adjustments for above - - - - - - -
- Consortium of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrail Lighting Ltd (CIT) ( - - - - - -
Advances Given - - - & = - -
- (2.10) - - Z - (2.10)
-Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited - - - - - - -
- (2.10) - - - - (2.10)
Advances received - - - - 19.53 = 19.53
- 4 - - {28.00) - (28.00
- ALTIS-TLL-JV = - - - 11.03 = 11.03
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium - - - - - - -
- . - - (28.00) - (28.00)
STLL-ALTIS IV £ - - - 8.50 - 8.50
Advance adjusted/repaid - 034 - - 24.04 - 24.37
- (1.91) - (2.2a) (4.18) e (8.33)’
~Transrail -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - - 3.29 - 3.29
= : = - (0.76) - (0.76)
- Transrail International FZE - = - = - - -
- (1.58) - - ) - (1.58)
-Transrail Foundation - - - - - - -
= s 5 (2.24) - + (2.24)
- ALTIS-TLL-IV - - ™ - 291 - 291
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium - - - - 17.83 - 17.83
= = = - (3.42) - (3.42)
~Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited - 0.34 - - - - 0.34
- (0.32) . - - - (0.32)
Purchase of Property, Palnt & Equipment - - - - - - -
- Gammon Engineers and Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - -




Entities where
controls /
Key significant .
ntity Joint Associ
Transactions chntr UIMIHI: Subsidiary Co Manag infl e by KMP's uln‘ £ Forate Total
e Personnel and their relatives e
exist/Fellow
Associate
Capital Payment = - = - L - -
- Gammon Engineers and Contractors Pyt. Ltd. - - - - = - -
Security Deposit Given - = = = - - -
- Gammon Engineers and Contractors Pvt. Lid. - - - - - - -
9 | Loan Given - - - - 47.00 47.00
- (3.00) - - - (12.50) {15.50]
- Transrail International FZE - - - - - - -
- (2.28) - = - - (2.28)
-Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited - - - - - - -
- (0.68) - = - - (0.68)
- Burberry Infra Private Limited - = - = = 47.00 47.00
- - - % - (12.50) (12.50)
- Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD - 4 - - - - -
- (0.04) = = 2 = (0.04)
10 | Loan Repayment Recelved - - = - = - -
. (129) . : - - (1.24)
- Transrail International FZE - - - - - - -
- (1.24) - - - - (1.23)
11 | Loan Taken 9.00 - = - = = 9.00
Ajanma Holding Pvt Ltd 9.00 5.00
12 | Loan Repaid 9.00 - - - - - 9,00
Ajanma Holding Pvt Ltd 9.00 5.00
13 | Interest Repaid 0.01 - - - - - 0.01
- Ajanma Holding Pvt. Ltd. 0.01 0.01
14 | Re-lmbursement - 0.04 '3 - 6.79 - 6.83
- (0.71) = - (0.28) - (1.00)
- TLL-METCON-PRAVESH-IV . - - - 0.04 - 0.04
-Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited - 0.04 = - - - 0.04
- (0.71) - - - - (0.71)
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium = - - - 6,75 - 6.75
i, = . - {0.28) - (0.28)
15 | Sale of Investment 151 - - 227 - - 378
Freysinnet Prestressed Concrete Company Limited (FPCC) = - - .27 - - 2.27
Ajanma Holding Pvt Ltd 151 - - - - - 151
16 | Shares issued on ESOP excercised - - - -
- - (0.87) (0.87)
-Mr. D. C. Bagde - - - - - - -
- - (0.87) - - - (0.87)
17 | Compensation to key management personnel - - 7.75 - - - 1.75
5 - (9.10) - - - (9.10)
- Mr. D. C. Bagde - - 3.26 - - - 3.26
. - (3.66) = - = (3.66)
Short-term employee benefits (including bonus and value of] - - 326 - - - 3.26
perguisites)
- - (2.93) - - - (2.93)
Expense recognized during the year on account of - - - - - - -
Employee Stock Options granted {60,000 Share options)
- - (0.74) - = - (0.74)
- Mr. Randeep Narang 3.64 3.64
(4.08) - (4.08)
Short-term employee benefits (including bonus and value of] 271 271
perquisites)
(3.23) # (3.23)
Commission 0.78 0.78
(0.75) (0.75)
Post employment benefits 0.16 0.16
(0.09)

(0.09)




Entities where
controls /
Key significant
i i
Transactions ;m::'r h]e: Subsidiary Co Manag it} i i Op::’a:!tnns :::p::ﬂ o
it Personnel and their relatives v
exist/Fellow
Associate
- Mr. Jeevan Lal Nagori - = 0.85 ¢ * - 0.85
- - (1.36) c 7 % (1.36)
Short-term employee benefits (including value of - = 0.83 = * = 0.83
perquisites)
- - (1.18) - - - (1.16)
Commission 0.02 0.02
(0.20) (0.20)
Mr. Vasant Savia = i
Short-term employee benefits (including value of -
perquisites)
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal - -
Short-term employee benefits (including value of -
perquisites)
18 | Sitting fees to directors - - 0.98 - - - 0.98
» = {0.57) - - - {0.57)
Mr. Srikant Chaturvedi » - - 0.16 - - - 0.16
- = (0.15) - - - (0.15)
Wr. N Sai Mohan - - 0.03 - - - 0.03
- - (0.15) - - = (0.15)
Mr. Jeevanial Nagori - - 0.05 - - x 0.05
Ms. Ravita Punwani - - 0.16 = - E 0.16
- - (0.15) = - - (0.15)
Mr Sanjay Verma - - 0.12 - - - 0.12
- - {0.12) - @ . (0.12)
Mr. Ashish Gupta - - 0.10 = = - 0.10
Mr. Vinod Dasari - - 0.10 = - - 0.10
Mr. Ranjit Jatar - - 0.11 - - - 0.11
Mr. Dilawar Singh == z 0.09 x = 5 0.09
Mr. Jalaj Dani - = 0.05 = 2 £ 0.05
Ms. Vita Jalaj Dani - - 0.01 & - = 0.01
17 | Creditors Paid/ Adjusted 0.46 4.34 0.94 - - - 5.75
- Transrail International FZE - 0.04 0.04
- Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited - 4.30 4.30
Mr. 5 K Chaturvedi F = 0.06 0.06
Mr. N R Sai Mohan - 5 0.02 0.02
Mr Jeevanlal Nagori - = 0.01 0.01
Mr. Sanjay Verma - - 0.01 0.01
Mrs Ravita Punwani - = 0.05 0.05
Mr. Vinod Dasari 0.03 0.03
Mr. Dilawar Singh 0.03 0.03
Mr. Ashish Gupta 0.03 0.03
Mr. Ranjit Jatar 0.04 0.04
Mr. Jalaj Dani 0.02 0.0z
Ms. Vita Jalaj Dani 0.00 0.00
Chaturvedi Sk & Fellows - - 0,40 0.40
JLN Yash & Co. - - 0.25 0.25
-Ajanma Holding Pvt Ltd 0.46 -

0.46
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19

21

Entities where
controls /
Key significant "
J Associ
Transactions ;r:::zrh f;; bsidiary Co Manag infi e by KMP's & :;:itcms cgf::::e Total
£ Personnel and their relatives " ¥
exist/Fellow
Associate
Interest Payable - - - - 0.88 - 0.88
ALTIS-TLLIV - - - - 0.82 - 0.82
TLL-ALTIS IV - - - - 0.05 - 0.05
Interest Expense 0.01 - = - 0.88 - 0.89
-Ajanma Holding Pyt Lid 0.01 0.01
ALTIS-TLLIV 0.82 0.82
ALTIS-TLLIV 0.05 0.05
Interest Income - 2.42 - 0.35 - 8.90 1167
- (2.34) - % - (2.34) (4.69)
- Transrail International FZE - 0.38 - = 5 - 0.38
- (0.34) - = = - (0.34)
- Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited = 2.02 - - - - 2.02
- (1.99) - N - - (1.99)
- Burberry Infra Private Limited N - = = = 8.80 8.90
- - - = - (2.34) (2.34)
-Freysinnet Prestressed Concrete Company Limited (FPCC) - - - 035 - - 0.35
-Transrall Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD € 0.01 - o = “ 0.01
- (0.01) = i = - (0.01)
Forex - 0.69 - - 0.23 - 0.92
- Transrail International FZE 0.12 0.12
- Transrail Structures America INC 0.00 0.00
-Transrail Lighting Malaysia SON BHD 0.00 0.00
- Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited 0.56 0.56
-Transrail Hanbeak Consortium 0.23 0.23
Bank/ Carporate Guarantees Outstanding as at Mar 31, 2024 - - - - 520.74 - 520.74
= P & - (430.18) - (430.18))
- GECPL-TLLIV - - - - B5.52 - 85.52
- - - - (96.92) - (96.92)
-TLL Metcon Pravesh IV - - - - 36.36 2 36.36
- - - - (27.46) = (27.48)
- ALTIS-TLL IV - - - - 3197 = 31.97
i - 5 s (31.97) - (31.97)
- TLL-ALTIS IV - - - - 25.65 - 29.65
- TLL-EVRASCON JV - - - - 29.26 - 29.26
. : - - (76.82) - (76.82)
-TLL- Hyosung T & D india Pyt Ltd JV = - - - 10.58 - 10.58
- z = - {10.58) - (10.58)
- Consartium of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrail Lighting Ltd (CJT) - - - - 93.42 - 93.42
(Bhutan)
i = - - (101.88) - (101.88)
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium = = - 46.73 - 46.73
- - - - (44.48) - (44.48)
- Transrail - SAE Consortium - Tanzania - = - - 6.01 - 6.01
- - - - (5.92) - (5.92)
- Transrail - Universal Cables (UNISTAR) Consortium - Suriname - - - - 22.56 - 22.56
- - - z (30.03) - (30.03)
-ITD Cem - Transrail JV - - = - 116.70 - 116.70
- Transrail - CSPP Consortium - Thailand . = = % 11.98 - 11.99
- - - - (4.11) = (a.11)
Right Issue of Equity Shares Issued During the Year - - - - - - -
-Ajanma Holdings Private Limited - - - B . - -
- Mr. D. C. Bagde - - - - = s =
- Mr. Deepak Bhojwani - - - - - a <
- Mr. N Sai Mohan ) » = - . ) 3 4
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Entities where

controls /
Key significant
Transactions Entitywhere | o b cu y Co fNanag) infl e by KMP's & mlf;t C.Assuclate Total
control exists - and thelr relatives perations ompany
exist/Fellow
Associate
- Ms. Meha Chaturvedi - - e = z = =
Provision for Doubtful Advances Closing - - - - 4.67 - 4.67
e 5 s . {4.67) s {4.67)
- Consortium of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrail Lighting Ltd (CJT) ( - - - - 4.67 - 4.67
= > = = (4.67) - (4.67)
Loans & Advances Receivable as at Mar 24 - 25.93 - - 85.49 - 111.42
- (24.09)' - - (12.48) (32.00) (68.57)
-Transrail -FCEP JV- Nigeria = - - - 137 - 1.37
2 - z Z (7.26) = (7.36)
-Transrail Lighting Malaysia SON BHD - 0.13 - - - - 0.13
- (0,12) - - - - (0.12)!
- Transrail International FZE - 4.19 & = ~ = 4.19
- {4.09) - - - - (4.09)
- Transrail Lighting Nigeria limited - 21.61 o = - - 2161
- (19.88) - - = = (19.88)
- Burberry Infra Private Limited - - - = 79.00 - 79.00
- - = - - {32.00) (32.00)
- Consortium of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrail Lighting Ltd (QJT) ( - - - - 4.67 - a4.67
= 2 = = (4.67) = (4.67)
- Railsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd. -TLLJV (REPL-TLLJV) - - - - 0.45 - 0.45
- - - - (0.45) i~ (0.45)
Receivables OQutstanding as at Mar 24 5.28 1.88 - - 176.34 - 183.51
- (1.80) - - (148.76) - (150.67)
- TLL-METCON-PRAVESH-IV - - - - 6.50 - 6.50
- - - - (15.79) - (15.79)
- Transrail Structures America INC - 0.08 - - - - 0.08
= (0.08) - - - - (0.08)
-Transrail Lighting Malaysia SON BHD - 0.07 - - - - 0.07
- {0.08) - - - - (0.08)
- Transrail Lighting Nigeria limited - 0.70 - - - - 0.70
- (0.73) = - - - (0.73)
- GECPL-TLL-JV - - - - 111.48 - 111.48
- - - - (102.57) - (102.57)
- ALTIS-TLLV - - - - 21.74 = 21.74
= = - & (14.99) = (14.99)
- Transrail International FZE - 1.02 - - - ] 102
- (1.01) - - - - (1.01)
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium - - - - 3548 - 35.48
- - - - (13.97) - (13.97)
-Freysinnet Prestressed Concrete Company Limited (FPCC) 5.28 - - - - - 5.28
- Railsys Engineering Put. Ltd. -TLL IV (REPL-TLL V) = 2 = - 1.15 - 1.15
E = E : (1.45) - (1.45)
Interest Receivable as at Mar 24 - 6.86 - - 8.02 - 14.88
- (4.19) - - - - (4.19)
- Transrail International FZE - 073 - - - - 0.73
- (0.34) - - - - (0.34)
~Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD - 0.03 - - - - 0.03
- (o.02)| . - - - {0.02)
- Burberry Infra Private Limited - - - - 8.02 - B.02
- Transrall Lighting Nigeria limited - 6.10 - - - - 6.10
- (3.83) - - - - (3.83)
Security Deposit Given Outstanding - - - # = & o
- Gammon Engineers and Contractors Pvt. Ltd. -
Security Deposit Taken Outstanding - - - - - - -
- Adarsha Global Build Projects Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - -
- GECPL-TLL-IV - - - - - = -
Payables For Capital Goods - - - = > = =
- Gammaon Engineers and Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - -
Payables Outstanding as at Mar 24 277 4.27 - - 27.81 - 34.84
(0.36) (1.31) - - (27.71) - (29.37)
-Ajanma Holdings Private Limited 2.77 - - - - - 277
(0.36) - - - - - (0.36)
Transrail International FZE 2.07 2.07




7

Entities where
controls /
Key significant .
Transactions sty wh:are Subsidiary Co | Management |influence by KMP's mmAt Asscrime Total
= control exists i Op Company
Personnel and their relatives
exist/Fellow
Associate

- Transtail Lighting Migeria limited - 219 - - = - 219

- (1.31) - - = - (1.31)
- Transrail Hanbaek Consortium - - - - 10.17 - 10.17

. - - - (24.58) - (24.58)
- Railsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd. -TLLJV [REPL-TLLJV] 101 1.01
- ALTISTLL-V . 5 = 3 8.12 ” 8.12
TLL-ALTIS IV : = % = 8.50 = 8.50
~Transrail -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - - - - =

_ . - - (3.13) - (3.13)
Investments as at Mar 24 - 0.64 = - = = 0.64

= (0.64) = = = (0.01) (0.65)
- Transrail International FZE - 0.36 E = = - 0.36

- (0.36) = = - & (0.36)
~Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD - 0.02 = % o & 0.02

7 (0.02) 2 : g % (0.02)
- Transrail Lighting Nigeria limited - 0.20 = z = & 0.20

- (0.20) - = - - (0.20)
- Transrail Structures America INC - 0.07 - - - = 0.07

% (0.07} - . . - (0.07)
- Burberry Infra Private Limited - = = Z - = -

# = = = 5 (0.01) (0.01)

*Previous figures are in bracket()
Terms and conditions of transactions with reloted parties
The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest

free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. The Company has not recorded any impairment of

receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties except write off of recsivables a5 disclosed above. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

A This includes Commission paid /payable to M/'s Chaturvedi S.K & Fellows, in which Mr. Shrikant Chaturvedi is a partner.




srail Lighting Limited
Annexure |Il- Analytical Ratios
Sr. Ratio Numerator/ - Ratio Ratio % of Reason for variance
No. Denominator (March 31, 2024)  (Mar 31,2023)  Variation
1 Current ratio Current Assat 1.24 118 5.43
Current Liahilities
2 Debt-Equity ratio Total Debts 0.55 0.77 {28.67) Ratio decreased due to Increase in share
capital by Rs 1.92 Crores & profit during the
financial year, This is dispite of increase in
debts.
Shareheolders Equity
3 Debt Service Coverage Earnings available for debt 224 1.28 74,02 Ratic improves due to substantial increase in
ratio service earnings as compare to last financial year,
Debt Service
4  Return on Equity ratia Net Profits after taxes — 24.13% 14.43% 67.23 Increase in ROE s attributable to increase in
(ROE) Preference Dividend profit.
Average Shareholder’s Equity
3 Inventory Turnover Cost of poods sold OR_sales 11.654 1047 11.18
Ratio
Average Inventory
6 Trade Receivables Net Credit Sales 4.86 488 (0.30)
turnover ratio
Average Accounts Receivable
7 Trade payables Net Credit Purchases 152 155 (1.86)
turnover ratio
Average Trade Payables
8 Met capital turnover Net Sales 651 761 (14.48)
ratio
Average working capital
9 Net profit ratio Net Profit after Tax 5.78% 3.49% £5.38 Increase in Net prefit ratio attributable
Net Sales mainly due to reduction in Cost of material
cost & employement benefit costasa % of
sale.
10 Return on Capital Earning before interest and 27.08% 19.74% 37.20 Increase in ROI s attributable to increase in
employed (ROCE) taxes profit,
Capital Employed
11 Returnon Investment (T4} = MV(TO) = Sum [Cit - Investment in the subsidiaries and associate
(ROI) are strategic and non treasury. Hence this
ratio is not applicable.
{Mv(T0) + Sum [Wit) * C{t)]}
Where:

T1 = End of time period

T0 = Beginning of time period

t = Specific date falling between T1 and TO
MV{T1) = Market Value at T1

MV(TO) = Market Valug at TO

Clt) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date

W(t) = Weight of the net cash flow (L.e. either net inflow or net outflow) on day 't calculated as [T1—t] /T1
Companies may provide ROl separately for each asset class (e.g., equity, fixed income, money market, etc.).

| Z




